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Chairman'’s Statement
FERES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors
(the “Directors”) of China New Energy Power Group
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the
financial results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as the “Group”) for the financial
year ended 31 December 2013.

The audited consolidated profit for the year of the Group
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$24.42 million. Basic earnings per share based on the
weighted average number of 1,906,073,250 shares in
issue amounted to HK1.28 cents (2012: earnings per share
HK1.91 cents).

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s
revenue was approximately HK$0.25 million (2012:
approximately HK$0.25 million).

Change in the fair value on derivative financial instruments
through profit or loss reflected a loss of approximately
HK$28.34 million in the year under review. On the other
hand gain on the fair value of held-for-trading investments
of approximately HK$16.50 million and gain on disposal
of subsidiaries of approximately HK$66.45 million were
recorded in the year 2013. As a result, the Group recorded
a profit of approximately HK$20.28 million in the financial
year ended 31 December 2013.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$24.42 million (2012:
approximately HK$32.66 million).
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Chairman'’s Statement
FERES

As the progress of the property development project had
been lagged behind the schedule and the expected pre-
sale of the project may not meet the Group’s expectation,
the Group disposed of its property development project
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

While no revenue was generated from the Group’s
property business, a few dividend income was recorded by
its investment in securities business.

Looking ahead, the global markets continue to face
uncertainties in 2014. Accompanying the expected
recovery of the economy of the United States, the Federal
Reserve has started to reduce the quantitative easing
measures that were implemented in the past few years.
Such measures imposed uncertainties on prices of global
asset classes and triggered international capital outflow
from the emerging markets. This also caused significant
fluctuations in global financial markets in the beginning of
the year.

Since 2013, the Central Government of the People’s
Republic of China (the "PRC") has been pursuing
economic reforms and structural adjustments, which
emphasize on sustainable quality growth by using market-
driven measures. This may have short term effect on the
momentum of economic growth in the country and it is
widely expected that the Gross Domestic Product (the
“GDP") of the PRC will slow down to around 7%.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

The properties currently held by the Group are of
commercial or non-residential nature. While the Group
continues to invest in commercial properties, it will
also seek opportunities in project which consists of
both residential and commercial natures. The Group's
management team, which has experiences in property and
investment businesses, are geared up for opportunities
in China‘s rapid urbanization and the country's growing
demand for both commercial and residential properties.
The Group will take steps to explore potential projects at
suitable locations for property development and investment
in PRC should opportunities arise.

The Group will also keep on monitoring and analysing
government policies and market trend in an active manner,
so as to align its development and marketing strategies to
grasp opportunities for its property business.

Moreover, the Group will continue to dedicate its efforts
to the development of its existing businesses and other
potential projects with a view to providing steady returns
as well as fruitful growth for its shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, my sincere thank to our loyal
shareholders, suppliers and business associates for their
continuous support to the Group. | would also extend
my gratitude and appreciation to our management and
all staff for their invaluable effort and contributions
throughout the year.

On behalf of the Board,

Ip Cheng Kuong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE M

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s
revenue was approximately HK$0.25 million (2012:
approximately HK$0.25 million). This represented dividend
received from held-for-trading securities during the
reporting year.

Segmental Results

During the reporting year, property business and
investments in securities remain the continuing business
operations of the Group.

Property business

No revenue was generated from the operation of
property business for the reporting year (2012: nil) and
its segmental result suffered a loss of approximately
HK$10.52 million (2012: a loss of approximately HK$11.04
million). This was mainly due to the pre-completion
administrative expenses incurred in the Xi‘an Project (as
defined hereinafter).

Investments in securities business

The revenue generated from the operation of investments
in securities for the reporting year was approximately
HK$0.25 million (2012: approximately HK$0.25 million)
and its segmental result reflected a profit of approximately
HK$16.78 million (2012: a loss of approximately HK$17.80
million).

Cost of Sales

As the investment property acquired by the Group in 2013
is still under renovation, no cost of sales was recorded
during the reporting year (2012: nil).

Gross Profit/Loss

Since the investment property acquired is still under
renovation, neither gross profit nor gross loss was recorded
during the reporting year (2012: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE M

Other Income

The Group's other income for the reporting year increased
to approximately HK$4.58 million from approximately
HK$1.07 million in year 2012. Such increase was mainly
due to imputed interest income of approximately HK$3.91
million on deferred consideration receivable.

Other Gains and Losses

Other gains and losses of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$60.13 million for the reporting year
(2012: gains of approximately HK$80.76 million). The
gains and losses mainly consisted of the gain on disposal
of subsidiaries of approximately HK$66.45 million (2012:
approximately HK$24.22 million) and the gain on fair value
change of held-for-trading investments of approximately
HK$16.50 million (2012: a loss of approximately HK$17.99
million). A loss on fair value change of derivative financial
instruments of approximately HK$28.34 million (2012: a
net gain of approximately HK$77.70 million) was suffered
in the reporting year.

Selling and Distribution Costs
No selling and distribution costs were incurred by the
Group during the reporting year (2012: nil).

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for the reporting
year decreased to approximately HK$28.75 million from
approximately HK$34.87 million in the year 2012. Such
decrease was due to the reduction in administrative
expenses after the disposal of the Xi'an Project (as defined
hereinafter) in September 2013 and the decrease in legal
and professional fees during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE M

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs for the reporting year decreased
to approximately HK$15.94 million from approximately
HK$18.97 million in 2012, representing a decrease
of 15.97%. The finance costs consisted mainly of the
effective interests expenses on the convertible notes of
approximately HK$15.94 million (2012: approximately
HK$18.69 million).

Profit for the Year and Earnings Per Share

The Group’s profit attributable to owners of the Company
for the reporting year was approximately HK$24.42 million
(2012: approximately HK$32.66 million). Such change
was mainly due to the change in the fair value of the
derivative financial instruments, the gain on fair value of
held-for-trading investments and the gain on disposal of
subsidiaries. Basic earnings per share of the Group was
approximately HK1.28 cents per share for the year ended
31 December 2013 (2012: approximately HK1.91 cents per
share).

In the beginning of the year 2013, transaction volumes
and prices for residential houses in the PRC experienced
a recovery from the previous year, with increase in sales
and in property prices being reported in major first-
tier and second-tier cities. In order to stabilise the real
estate market, the State Council of the PRC promulgated
the New Five Measures of the State Council in early
2013 to curb price growth and reiterated its austerity
measures to the real estate sector. Progress of the property
development project of the Group also suffered from
the market sentiment following implementation of those
measures.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE M

Property Business

Disposal of Allywing Investments Limited

During the year under review, the Group disposed of
its interests in its property development project on the
land situated at the Xi'an city, PRC (the “Xi'an Project”)
through the disposal of the Group’s entire interests in
Allywing Investments Limited (”Allywing”) (the "Allywing
Disposal”).

Since the Group acquired the Xi'an Project in 2010, it
had been planning and developing the Xi'an Project for a
long period of time and the progress of which had been
lagged behind the schedule. In addition, the expected pre-
sale of phase | of the Xi'an Project may not be able to
meet the Group's expectation having regard to the then
property market in the development zone in Xi‘an where
the Xi'an Project is situated. The Board decided to realise
its investments in Allywing as well as the Xi'an Project
and the Allywing Disposal was completed on 3 September
2013. Details of the Allywing Disposal were set out in
the circular of the Company dated at 27 June 2013 (the
“Circular”).

Acquisition of Guiyang Ding Tian Investment Consultancy
Limited*

Besides its investment in property development project,
the Group intends to generate steady returns as well as
fruitful growth from its business operations. The 5-storey
commercial building which locates in Guiyang city, the
PRC (the
of capital outlay and allows the Group to participate in
property investment and management business. As such,
the Board decided to acquire the Guiyang Project through
SEERAKRE
AR A A (Guiyang Ding Tian Investment Consultancy
Limited*) (“GY Ding Tian") and the acquisition of GY Ding
Tian was completed on 3 September 2013. Details of the
acquisition of GY Ding Tian were set out in the Circular.

“Guiyang Project”), requires a smaller amount

the acquisition of the entire equity interest in =

4 For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE M

Prior to the completion of the Allywing Disposal, the
Xi'an Project was still in a construction stage and as
such, the Group did not record any revenue from the
property business for the reporting year but a loss of
approximately HK$10.52 million was incurred (2012: a loss
of approximately HK$11.04 million).

Investments in Securities Business

During the reporting year, a revenue of approximately
HK$0.25 million was recorded from the operation of
investments in securities (2012: approximately HK$0.25
million). This represented dividend income received from
held-for-trading securities during the reporting year. The
segmental profit of approximately HK$16.78 million was
mainly due to the gain on change in fair value of held-for-
trading investments.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's bank balances
and cash was approximately HK$37.02 million (2012:
approximately HK$33.27 million), representing an increase
of 11.27%. There was no bank and other borrowings as
at 31 December 2013 (2012: approximately HK$17.19
million).

As at 31 December 2013, the current ratio (current assets/
current liabilities) was 68.48 times (2012: 8.01 times)
and the net current assets amounted to approximately
HK$280.64 million (2012: approximately HK$603.74
million).

During the reporting year, net cash used in operating
activities was approximately HK$28.67 million (2012:
approximately HK$62.78 million). The net cash generated
from investing activities was approximately HK$19.95
million (2012: approximately HK$12.44 million). The net
cash generated from financing activities was approximately
HK$12.90 million (2012: approximately HK$53.90 million).
As a result, the net increase in cash and cash equivalents
during the reporting year was approximately HK$4.18
million (2012: approximately HK$3.56 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE M

No issuance and redemption of convertible notes
There was no issuance and redemption of convertible
notes during the reporting year. All operations of the
Group were financed by funds generated internally.

With reference to the announcement of the Company
dated 29 November 2010 and the circular dated 20
December 2010, on 29 November 2010, Allywing entered
into a management agreement (the
Agreement”) with Harvest Day Limited (“Harvest Day"),
a company of which 60% issued share capital is held by
a sister of Mr. Zhang Xi, the former joint chairman and

“Management

executive director of the Company, who resigned with
effect from 21 May 2012. Pursuant to the Management
Agreement, Harvest Day would provide management
and consultancy services to Allywing in connection with
the Xi'an Project. Allywing would pay to Harvest Day
an inclusive management fee of HK$50,000,000 by 3
installments. The resolution approving the Management
Agreement and the annual caps of management fee
payable to Harvest Day was passed at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 6 January 2011.
The first installment of HK$23,000,000 was paid on
7 January 2011 according to terms and conditions of the

Management Agreement.

During the reporting year, no project management fee was
paid or payable under the Management Agreement.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the sale and
purchase agreement in relation to the Allywing Disposal,
the Management Agreement had to be terminated prior to
the completion of the Allywing Disposal. The Management
Agreement was terminated on 26 August 2013 and the
Allywing Disposal was completed on 3 September 2013.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE M

A share option scheme was adopted on 25 May 2012,
whereby the Board may, at its absolute discretion, grant
options to any eligible participants including directors and
employees of the Group to subscribe for shares in the
Company. Details of the share option scheme were set out
in the circular of the Company dated 24 April 2012.

No option had been granted by the Company during the
reporting year.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’'s gearing ratio
calculated on the basis of convertible notes, bank and
other borrowings of approximately HK$178.97 million
(2012: approximately HK$151.89 million) and total assets
of approximately HK$470.14 million (2012: approximately
HK$698.35 million), was 27.57% (2012: 17.86%).

The Group is not aware of any material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2013.

At the end of the reporting year, the Group had not
pledged any assets (2012: Nil).

There have been no significant changes in the Group’s
policy in terms of exchange rate exposure. The Group
operates mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Most of
the transactions are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
("HKD"), Renminbi (“RMB") and United States dollars
("USD"). The exchange rate of USD and RMB against HKD
are relatively stable. Hence the Group neither anticipate
any significant exchange risk exposure nor have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management
continuously monitors the Group's foreign exchange risk
exposure and will consider to hedge significant currency
risk exposure should the need arise.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE M

As of 31 December 2013, the Group had approximately 20
full time management, administrative and operation staff
in the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group provides competitive remuneration packages
with attractive discretionary bonus to employees. The
Group regularly reviews its remuneration packages in
light of the overall development of the Group as well
as the market conditions. In addition, the Group has
adopted a share option scheme to provide incentives to
eligible employees (including Directors) with outstanding
performance and contribution to the Group.

The following are changes in directorship of the Company
during the reporting year:

- Ms. Catherine Chen, an executive director, managing
director, general manager, authorised representative
(for the purpose of Rule 3.05 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”)) and authorised representative
for the service of process and notices under the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) of the Company and director, managing
director and supervisor of certain subsidiaries of the
Company, resigned with effect from 1 August 2013.

- Mr. Wah Wang Kei, Jackie, an executive director
of the Company, resigned with effect from 13
September 2013.

- Mr. Wu Zhou Tong was re-designated from a non-
executive director to an executive director of the
Company with effect from 18 December 2013.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Executive

EEZRERITHRAB ZERE

Biographical details of the Directors and senior executive
are set out as follows:

Mr. Ip Cheng Kuong (“Mr. Ip"), aged 74, is the chairman
of the Company. Mr. Ip joined us in June 2011. Mr. Ip
graduated from PLA Military Engineering Institute in
Harbin and is a spationautics expert in Chinese aerospace
industry. Mr. Ip is the founder of "&XEE (b R) IRRE
BB /AF (an affiliate of China Energy Conservation and
Environment Protection Group, which is a state owned
enterprise in the PRC), and currently serves as its vice
chairman. He is concurrently the beneficial controlling
shareholder and the chairman of Liuhe EPES Group. Mr.
Ip is also the beneficial controlling shareholder and the
chairman of Global Zone International Limited, a company
which holds 3.90% equity interest in the Company as at
31 December 2013.

Mr. Yeung Kwok Yu (“Mr. Yeung”), aged 62, joined
us in July 2009, is a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group. He is the chairman of the investment and
management committee (the “IMC"”) and a member of
the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Yeung
had held management positions in trading companies
which were based in the PRC and Hong Kong. He was also
engaged as senior management in various listed companies
in Hong Kong. Mr. Yeung has extensive experience in
general trading, strategic investment planning and business
development. Mr. Yeung is currently an executive director
of CST Mining Group Limited (“CST"),
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Yeung is the brother-in-law of Mr. Chiu Kong, an executive
director of the Company.

of which shares

Mr. Chiu Kong (“Mr. Chiu”), aged 56, joined us in July
2010, is a supervisor of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Chiu has over 15 years of experience in import and
export trading and business development. Mr. Chiu is
the brother-in-law of Mr. Yeung Kwok Yu, an executive
director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Executive
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Mr. Kwan Kam Hung, Jimmy (“Mr. Kwan"”), aged
52, joined us in November 2009, is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. He is a member of the IMC of
the Company. He has been engaged as a senior manager
with various listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Kwan
has over 15 years of experience in the fields of finance
and accounting and corporate management. Mr. Kwan
is currently an executive director of CST and was also
an executive director of G-Resources Group Limited
("G-Resources”) for the period from 25 March 2009 to 30
December 2012, companies whose shares are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chen Guang Lin (“Mr. Chen"”), aged 42, joined us
in March 2011, is a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Chen has extensive experience in operating and
managing enterprises in the PRC. In addition, Mr. Chen has
acquainted himself with matters such as administration,
management and tax issues in PRC enterprises. He is also
familiar with the operation, management and operating
environments in the PRC.

Mr. Wu Zhuo Tong (“Mr. Wu”), aged 44, joined us as a
non-executive director in May 2012. He was re-designated
as an executive director of the Company in December
2013. He graduated from Hainan University in 1991. He
is currently a CEO of a company in Hong Kong. Mr. Wu
has over 20 years of experience in administration and
management.

Ms. Ma Yin Fan (“"Ms. Ma"), aged 50, joined us in
August 2009, is the chairlady of the audit committee
and the remuneration committee of the Company. She
obtained a bachelor’s degree with honours in accountancy
at Middlesex University in the United Kingdom. She also
holds an MBA and Master in Professional Accounting
degree from Heriot-Watt University in the United Kingdom
and Hong Kong Polytechnic University, respectively. Ms.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Executive
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Ma is a CPA (Practising) in Hong Kong and has been
working in the auditing, accounting and taxation for more
than 20 years. She is the principal of Messrs. Ma Yin Fan
& Company CPAs. Ms. Ma is a fellow member of each of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. She is also an associate member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountant in the England and
Wales and a Certified Tax Advisor in Hong Kong. Ms. Ma is
currently an independent non-executive director of China
Strategic Holdings Limited (“China Strategic”), CST and
G-Resources, companies whose shares are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Leung Hoi Ying (“Mr. Leung”), aged 63, joined
us in August 2009, is the chairman of the nomination
committee and a member of the audit committee and the
remuneration committee of the Company. He graduated
from Guangdong Foreign Trade School in PRC. He has
over 30 years of experience in the international trading
and business development. Mr. Leung is currently an
independent non-executive director of China Strategic and
G-Resources, companies whose shares are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yu Pan (“Mr. Yu”), aged 59, joined us in August
2009, is a member of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee
of the Company. He has over 20 years of experience in
management positions of multinational trading companies
in Hong Kong and the Mainland China. Mr. Yu is currently
an independent non-executive director of CST, shares of
which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lee Ming Tung (“Mr. Lee”), aged 52, joined us in
December 2012. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree
in accounting from Brigham Young University in U.S.A., a
Master of Accountancy degree from Virginia Polytechnic
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Institute and State University of U.S.A., a Master of
Financial Engineering degree from City University of
Hong Kong and a Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate
Administration from Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr.
Lee is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, a fellow member of The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, a Certified Tax Adviser
of Hong Kong, a Certified Management Accountant of
Australia and a member of Institute of Public Accountant
of Australia. He has over 20 years’ experience in the field
of accounting and finance. Mr. Lee has been an executive
director of CST since 28 September 2007, of which shares
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. He is
also the chief financial officer of CST.

Mr. Tang Kam Shing (“Mr. Tang”), is the company
secretary and the group financial controller of the Group.
Mr. Tang joined the Group in May 2010. He graduated
with a bachelor (honour) degree in Accountancy and a
master degree in Corporate Governance from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Tang is an associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and fellow member of The Association of
International Accountants. He is also an associate member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, and
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He is a Certified
Tax Adviser in Hong Kong. Mr. Tang has over 15 years of
experience in finance, accounting, auditing and taxation.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tang had been the senior
finance executive of several listed group of companies and
multinational companies in Hong Kong.
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The Board considers that good corporate governance
of the Company is crucial to safequard the interests of
the shareholders of the Company and to enhance the
performance of the Group. The Board and management
of the Company are committed to enhancing corporate
governance standard, in compliance with all relevant
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”)
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The Company
has, throughout the year ended 31 December 2013,
complied with the relevant provisions of the Code (“Code
Provisions”), save for the deviations disclosed below in this
report.

This report summarises the Company’'s corporate
governance practices and structures that were in place
during the financial year.

The Directors, individually and collectively, are
committed to act in good faith in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. As at the date
of this report, the Board comprised six executive
Directors and four independent non-executive
Directors. The profile of all Directors are set out on
pages 15 to 18, where relationship among members
of the Board (including financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationship(s), if any) are
also disclosed.

The Board is responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions of the Company in
accordance with the Code,
the Group’'s corporate governance policies, and

including determining

reviewing and monitoring the corporate governance
practices of the Group.
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The Board is responsible for the management of the
business and affairs of the Group with the objective
of enhancing shareholders value and presenting a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of
the Company’s performance, position and prospects
in the annual and interim reports, and of other inside
information announcements and accounting policies,
and reports to regulators any information required
to be disclosed pursuant to the relevant statutory
requirements.

The Board has fiduciary duty and statutory
responsibility towards the Company and the
Group. Other responsibilities include, formulation
of the Group’s overall strategy and policies, setting
corporate and management targets and key
operational initiatives, monitoring and control of
operational and financial performance, and approval
of budgets and major capital expenditures, major
investments, material acquisitions and disposals
of assets, corporate or financial restructuring,
significant operational, financial and management
matters.

The Board delegates day-to-day management of the
business of the Group to the management of the
relevant principal subsidiaries and certain specific
responsibilities to audit committee, remuneration
committee, nomination committee and the IMC.
The composition and functions of each committee
are described below. These committees have specific
functions and authority to examine issues and
report to the Board with their recommendations
(if appropriate). The final decision rests with the
Board, unless otherwise provided for in the terms of
reference of the relevant committee.
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The Company has arranged appropriate liability
insurance cover for liabilities in respect of legal
actions against Directors arising out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
regularly.

The company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) provides the Directors with updates on
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements. Any Director
may request the Company Secretary to arrange for
independent professional advice at the expense of
the Company to assist the Directors to effectively
discharge their duties to the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors serve the
important function of ensuring and monitoring
the basis for an effective corporate governance
framework. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has to provide an annual confirmation
of his/her independence to the Company. The
Board considers that each of the independent non-
executive Directors is independent in character
and judgment and that they all meet the specific
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

All Directors are regularly updated on governance
and regulatory matters. There is an established
procedure for Directors to obtain independent advice
where necessary at the expense of the Company in
discharging of their duties to the Company.
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The Board meets at least four times each year to
review the overall strategy and to monitor the
operation as well as the financial performance of
the Group. Additional meetings may be convened
to approve any notifiable transaction and shares
issuance. Notice of at least fourteen days is served
for regular board meetings. Reasonable notice
would be given for all other special board meetings
which are not held regularly. The chairman of the
Board is primarily responsible for drawing up and
approving the agenda for each board meetings in
consultation with all Directors and ensure that all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
board meetings. Agenda and accompanying board
papers in respect of board meetings are sent out in
full to all Directors within a reasonable time before
the date of every board meetings to allow them to
review these documents in advance. Minutes of all
board meetings, and meetings of the remuneration
committee, the nomination committee, the audit
committee and the IMC are kept by the Company
Secretary and the Directors may inspect these
minutes at any time during office hours upon giving
reasonable notice. Minutes of all board meetings,
and meetings of the remuneration committee, the
nomination committee, the audit committee and the
IMC, have recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered by the Board and the board committees,
including any concerns raised by Directors or
dissenting view expressed. Draft and final versions
of these minutes were sent to all Directors for their
comment and records respectively, normally within
10 days after the relevant meeting was held.
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Board held meetings to deal with, inter alia, the
following matters regarding corporate governance:

reviewed the corporate governance practices;

- reviewed and monitored the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

- reviewed and monitored the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors; and

- reviewed the Company's compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Every newly appointed Director will be given a
comprehensive package of induction materials about the
responsibilities and liabilities as well as statutory
and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed
company.

duties,

Monthly updates on the Group’s business, activities and
events will be provided to all members of the Board to
facilitate them in discharging their duties.

In order to ensure that the Directors could contribute to
the Board with comprehensive and relevant information
and to develop and refresh knowledge and skills of the
Directors, the Company has regularly provided training
information, encouraged and funded suitable trainings/
seminars for Directors to participate in continuous
professional developments. The Company also continuously
updates the Directors on the latest developments regarding
the Listing Rules and applicable regulatory requirements to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, a
record of the trainings attended/received by each of the
Directors, is set out in the table below:

BE-T-=4+-
EEERME BT
&P

A=+—HIMBF
B CEE IR T

Reading journals/ Attending
written training courses/seminars/
materials/updates conferences
RERT HERRE
EmEIME 129
BEHEHR =
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Ip Cheng Kuong BIEhE v
Mr. Yeung Kwok Yu 15 B3 5t 4 4 4
Mr. Chiu Kong £ 5T A 4
Mr. Kwan Kam Hung, Jimmy AiRE 4 v
Mr. Chen Guang Lin PR AR SE A v 4
Mr. Wu Zhuo Tong REPIE 4
Independent Non-executive Directors FI FHITESE
Ms. Ma Yin Fan BRI L L v 4
Mr. Leung Hoi Ying 2 ELE v
Mr. Yu Pan TESEE v 4
Mr. Lee Ming Tung =N e 4 4
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The following is an attendance record of each Director at

TERBINFABRESFHFEEFSER

the Board meetings held during the year: FOER
Number of
meetings
attended
Name of Board member EEgRERR HEERZRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Ip Cheng Kuong B GE 1712
Mr. Yeung Kwok Yu 5B A 12/12
Mr. Chiu Kong iz itas 0/12
Mr. Kwan Kam Hung, Jimmy R IR ST 10/12
Mr. Chen Guang Lin PREEM S A 5/12
Mr. Wu Zhuo Tong (re-designated from a REFEE (RZT—=
non-executive Director with effect +ZA+N\H
from 18 December 2013) RIERITESFAMT) 112
Ms. Catherine Chen (resigned with effect from  RZEZHw+ (R-_ZT—=%
1 August 2013) NA—HEIT) 6/7
Mr. Wah Wang Kei, Jackie (resigned with effect ZEZRELE (R-ZE—=F
from 13 September 2013) HNA+=8&T) 5/11
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFHITES
Ms. Ma Yin Fan BRI AL 8/12
Mr. Leung Hoi Ying Ry E LA 8/12
Mr. Yu Pan TEXSE 7/12
Mr. Lee Ming Tung ERBEE 7/12
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The following is an attendance record of each Director

TERHINFABREFTHEARRBRRAK

at the general meetings of the Company held during the — & 2728k :
year:

Number of
meetings
attended

Name of Board member EEgEns HESBZRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Ip Cheng Kuong BiEALEAE 172
Mr. Yeung Kwok Yu SRR L E 212
Mr. Chiu Kong fizEiaias) 0/2
Mr. Kwan Kam Hung, Jimmy Bkt 2/2
Mr. Chen Guang Lin PR MRS A 0/2
Mr. Wu Zhuo Tong (re-designated from a REEEAE (RZBE—=F

non-executive Director with effect +=A+N\H

from 18 December 2013) HIFNTTESAT) 0/2
Ms. Catherine Chen (resigned with effect from MBI LZL (RZE—=F

1 August 2013) NA—HEE) 2/2
Mr. Wah Wang Kei, Jackie (resigned with effect #FEZRELA (R-_ZT—=4F

from 13 September 2013) hA+=B&F) 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Ms. Ma Yin Fan BESt 2/2
Mr. Leung Hoi Ying REERE 172
Mr. Yu Pan TERE 172
Mr. Lee Ming Tung THBESE 2/2

Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal board
members, should, among other things, attend general
meetings of the Company. During the year, one non-
executive Director was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 30 May 2013 as he had
other engagement; and one non-executive Director and
two independent non-executive Directors were unable to
attend the special general meeting of the Company held
on 17 July 2013 as they had other engagements.

BRIBT AR EAG. 7R BIUEMTES
LEMIFRATESEREEMESHER
FWNNEEENRE  BHFE (EHE8HE)
ARAHBERAE - FAR - —ZIFEBRITE
EREMEEMAELFERARANR T —
SFRAA=ZTHERETZRRBFRE : &
—RFATESTEMBBIULIFATESTH
HMEBMAELEARRNR_T—=F
TATERARTZBRREBINAE -
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Under Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of the
chairman and chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same
individual. During the year, the Company did not
name any officer with the title of “chief executive
officer”. Mr. Ip Cheng Kuong is the chairman of
the Company (“Chairman”) and Ms. Catherine
Chen was the managing director of the Company
(“Managing Director”). The Managing Director
assumed the position of chief executive officer
and was responsible for managing and smoothing
the business operations of the Group while the
Chairman was responsible for leading the Board in
the overall strategic development of the Group.

The Chairman and the Managing Director are
separate individuals with segregated roles and have
no relationship with each other. The Board believes
that there was an effective segregation of duties
between the Chairman and the Managing Director.
Subsequent to the resignation of Ms. Catherine
Chen as, inter alia, an executive Director and the
Managing Director with effect from 1 August 2013,
the Company has not appointed any director to fill
the position of managing director. The Board has
established the IMC on 15 August 2013 to manage
the operations and investment activities of the
Group. The IMC also assumes functions of the chief
executive officer before any individual is appointed
as such.

The Board considers the above arrangement to be
appropriate for the Company as it can preserve the
consistent leadership culture of the Company and
allow efficient discharge of the functions of the chief
executive officer. The Board believes that a balance
of power and authority is adequately ensured by
the Board which comprises experienced and high
caliber individuals, including four independent non-
executive directors (the “INEDs").

WIEFRAMEXEA2.1ME - T EETT
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ERBEECREANEE B
BRI
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AR -ZEFeRR ITRFREEFAKL
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The Company has received from each of the
INEDs an annual written confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has reviewed their independence
based on such confirmation and considers all of
them remaining independent.

All non-executive Directors are appointed for
a specific term of two years and are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting at least once every three years
pursuant to the Bye-laws.

Mr. Wu Zhuo Tong, who was appointed as a non-
executive Director with effect from 28 May 2012,
entered into a service contract with the Company
on 28 May 2012 for a term of two years, subject
to retirement and rotation once every three years
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
Subsequently, Mr. Wu was re-designated as an
executive Director with effect from 18 December
2013, and has entered into a new service contract
with the Company on 18 December 2013 for a term
of 2 years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

The Board currently comprises the following six
executive Directors and four independent non-
executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ip Cheng Kuong (Chairman)
Mr. Yeung Kwok Yu

Mr. Chiu Kong

Mr. Kwan Kam Hung, Jimmy
Mr. Chen Guang Lin

Mr. Wu Zhuo Tong

ARAREEESBIIIENTEZHRE
FRAIEIZEFI3RBELNE LS
NEEEEERE  MESSCIRE
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Ma Yin Fan

Mr. Leung Hoi Ying

Mr. Yu Pan

Mr. Lee Ming Tung

All independent non-executive Directors are
expressly identified as such in all of the Company’s
corporate communications that disclose the names
of Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognizes the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. The Company adopted the board
diversity policy on 28 August 2013. The policy
set out that the nomination committee of the
Company reviews and assesses the composition of
the Board, makes recommendations to the Board
on appointment of new directors of the Company,
conduct of the annual review of the effectiveness
of the Board in order to achieve the objective of the
board diversity policy.

The nomination committee has reviewed the
diversity of the Board and will review the board
diversity policy from time to time to ensure that the
policy will be implemented effectively.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company,
any new Director appointed by the Board, whether
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
existing Board, is subject to retirement and re-
election by shareholders at the next following
general meeting of the Company following his/her
appointment. At every annual general meeting of
the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if the number of Directors is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not greater than
one-third) shall retire from office and being eligible
for re-election.
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BRI L
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All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election by shareholders at annual general
meetings of the Company at least once every
three years. Details of Directors to be retired and
being eligible, offering themselves for re-election
in the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company will be set out in the circular of the
Company to be dated 23 April 2014,

As an integral part of good corporate governance,
the Board has established the following committees
with defined terms of reference.

6.1 Audit Committee

The Board considers that each audit
committee member has broad commercial
experience and there is a suitable mix of
expertise in business, accounting and financial
management in the audit committee. The
written terms of reference which describe the
authority and duties of the audit committee
were prepared and adopted in 1998 with
reference to “A Guide for the Formation of
an Audit Committee” published by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and were subsequently amended on 29 March
2012 and include duties as set out in the
relevant Code Provisions. The audit committee
comprises three INEDs, namely, Ms. Ma Yin
Fan, Mr. Yu Pan and Mr. Leung Hoi Ying. Ms.
Ma Yin Fan was appointed as the chairlady of
the audit committee.

MEEEHELB=FHFERE—
R AR ARBIRRBFAE LA
BCREIREE - BRARR]EERR
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The audit committee oversees the financial
reporting process and internal control system
of the Company. The management of the
Company is responsible for the preparation
of the Group’s financial statements while the
external auditor is responsible for auditing the
Group’s financial statements. Members of the
audit committee assist the Board in fulfilling
its responsibilities by providing an independent
review of the financial statements, supervising
the Company’s system of financial reporting
and internal control. The audit committee
presents a report to the Board on its findings
after each audit committee meeting.

The audit committee also provides an
important link between the Board and the
Company’s auditor in matters coming within
the scope of its terms of reference and keeps
the independence and objectivity of the
auditor under review.

The following is an attendance record of

BENEREQEEARRAZMB
Eﬁi&fr%%&ﬁﬂ% EEHE -
NAEEERAERHEASELZ
M@K - ﬁl\Eq’fZ%IEﬂﬁE'JEE
BRARE 2 WEHmEK - B
ZEERERMYEZTSET
HEEMBILEBYHRE
b%‘—ZZIK 72 B 7% B 3R S AP
ZHIE - ERREENER
ﬁiﬂ%’f? R SIS
AREFSRIRE -

ERLZEQ N ERESREN
Fﬁ&&%lﬁtﬁ%&i% = EYIN

RAMZEMzHANEEE
% WHEKERZBE 258
R EBIE -

TREIEZZEEXELE

members of the audit committee at the audit REABRITCEZLZES SR
committee meetings held during the year: ZROER

Number of

meetings

Name of audit EREEY attended

committee member REMHA HESERE

Ms. Ma Yin Fan (Chairlady) BRI LE (FEF) 2/2

Mr. Yu Pan FELE 2/2

Mr. Leung Hoi Ying RSB EE 2/2
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During the year ended 31 December 2013,
the members of the audit committee met
twice and discussed with the Board and
external auditor of the Company to review the
reporting of financial and other information to
shareholders, the systems of internal control,
financial control, risk management and the
effectiveness and objectivity of the audit
process. The audit committee reviewed the
terms of engagement, the independence and
objectivity of the external auditor and external
auditor's audit completion report during the
year.

The audit committee reviewed and discussed
with the management and external auditor
the 2013 consolidated financial statements
included in this report. In this regard, the audit
committee held discussions with management
with regard to new or changes in accounting
policies that had been applied, and significant
judgments of the management which affected
the Group’s financial statements. The audit
committee received reports and met with the
external auditor to discuss the general scope
of their audit work, including the impact of
new or changes in accounting policies that
had been applied and their assessment of
the Group’s internal controls. Based on these
review and discussions, and the report of
the external auditor, the audit committee
recommended the Board to approve the
consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2013 and the
Independent Auditor’s Report.
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During the year, the audit committee
also reviewed the unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2013 and
recommended the Board to approve the
unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements.

The members of the audit committee
considered the appointment of external
auditor, their audit fees and recommended
the Board to seek shareholders’ approval for
the re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the Group's external auditor for
2014.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination
committee with terms consistent with the
Code Provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4. The written
terms of reference of the nomination
committee have included the duties as set
out in the relevant Code Provisions. The
nomination committee comprises two INEDs,
namely Mr. Leung Hoi Ying and Mr. Yu Pan
and one executive Director, namely Mr. Yeung
Kwok Yu. Mr. Leung Hoi Ying was appointed
as the chairman of the nomination committee.

The principal role and function of the
nomination committee includes:

- review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the board
on a regular basis at least annually;

- make recommendations to the board
regarding on any proposed changes to
the board to complement the issuer’s
corporate strategy;

6.2
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- identify individuals suitably qualified to
become board members and select or
make recommendations to the board on
the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;

- assess the independence of INEDs; and

- make recommendations to the board
on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of
directors and succession planning for

- VeAEBAEAERAE
TEFgXEMAL
WHEERF AL H
TEFARLRAEFTS

RHEER

—  AEBURITEED
B K

- HESFZREHEHZME
AREBER(LERXER
RATH B ) #TE S
MEBFEENEZSR

directors, in particular the Chairman and HEE -

the chief executive officer.
The nomination committee meets at least REZBSEBFRITEL KX
once each year. ==

The following is an attendance record of
members of the nomination committee at the
nomination committee meetings held during
the year:

TREIIEEEEERE LR
ENBTIELEERRRY
548 -

Number of
meetings
Name of nomination REZEE attended
committee member MEHE HESBRE
Mr. Leung Hoi Ying (Chairman) ZYEHRE (/) 2/2
Mr. Yu Pan TFELAE 2/2
Mr. Yeung Kwok Yu HBE B SE 2/2
During the year, the nomination committee FR REZEEGRITTMR
held two meetings and dealt with the & YR ELREeRNUER
following matters at the said meetings or by RERAANRENTEIE
way of written resolutions:
B reviewed the structure, size and - BIEZgZIEE - A
composition of the Board; SR AR
= assessed the independence of all the —  FEBUERITEEN

INEDs; B
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- recommended to the Board the re-
election of Mr. Chiu Kong, Mr. Wah
Wang Kei, Jackie, Mr. Yu Pan and Mr.
Lee Ming Tung in the 2012 annual
general meeting; and

- recommended to the Board the re-
designation of Mr. Wu Zhuo Tong from
a non-executive director to an executive
director of the Company which the
nomination committee considered
would involve and enhance the business
operation of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration
committee to deal with matters of
remuneration and compensation arrangement
of Directors and senior management. The
written terms of reference of the remuneration
committee have included the duties as set
out in the relevant Code Provisions. The
remuneration committee comprises three
INEDs, namely, Ms. Ma Yin Fan, Mr. Leung
Hoi Ying and Mr. Yu Pan. Ms. Ma Yin Fan
was appointed as the chairlady of the
remuneration committee.

The principal role and function of the
remuneration committee includes:

- give recommendations on the
establishment of the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of
all Directors, senior management and
employees;

6.3
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- review and determine the remuneration
packages and compensation
arrangements for loss of office of
all executive Directors and senior
management; and

- review of performance-based
remuneration policy of the Group.

The remuneration committee meets at least
once each year.

Details of Directors’ emoluments are set
out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’
approval at general meeting. In determining
the emolument payable to Directors,
the remuneration committee takes into
consideration factors such as their duties,
responsibilities and contribution to the
Company, the prevailing market conditions,
time commitment and the desirability of
performance-based remuneration. No Director
is involved in determining his/her own
remuneration.

The remuneration package for each employee
is structured to attract, retain and motivate
high quality staff and at the same time to
reflect the importance of aligning awards
with shareholder interests. The remuneration
package contains a combination or
modifications of some or all of the three main
components: basic salary, performance bonus
and share options.
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The following is an attendance record of
members of the remuneration committee at
the remuneration committee meetings held
during the year:

TR EMEEERE LR
NENBHT T HHESeeE
i

Number of

meetings

Name of remuneration FNEE= attended
committee member REHE HESBRE
Ms. Ma Yin Fan (Chairlady) BEEZE (FE) 4/4
Mr. Leung Hoi Ying R\ E & 4/4
Mr. Yu Pan FELAE 4/4

During the year, the remuneration committee
held four meetings and dealt with the
following matters at the said meetings or by
way of written resolutions:

- reviewed the company’s policy and
structure for all remunerations of the
directors of the Company;

- reviewed performance and
remuneration packages of all Directors
and senior management of the
Company;

- recommended to the Board the
discretionary bonus granted to Ms.
Catherine Chen; and

- recommended to the Board the
remuneration package of Mr. Wu Zhuo
Tong in relation to the re-designation of
Mr. Wu from a non-executive director to
an executive director of the Company.
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6.4 Investment and Management Committee 6.4 REREEZES

The Board established the IMC on 15 August
2013. The IMC comprises two executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Yeung Kwok Yu and Mr.
Kwan Kam Hung, Jimmy. Mr. Yeung Kwok Yu
was appointed as the chairman of the IMC.

The principal role and function of the IMC
includes:

- act as a delegate for the Board
generally;

- make decisions and resolutions, and
to exercise all powers of the Board on
all matters of the Group in relation
to its daily operation and investment
activities; and

- make recommendations to the Board
concerning matters of corporate
significance not otherwise dealt by any
other committees of the Board.

The following is an attendance record of
members of the IMC at the IMC meetings held
during the year:
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TREIREREEZEENK
BHERFARITZRERE

BEBSGH LR

Number of

meetings

RERETHEEZES attended

Name of the IMC member REHE HESBRE
Mr. Yeung Kwok Yu (Chairman) BEmEE (£/EF) 2/2
Mr. Kwan Kam Hung, Jimmy FEERIR A 2/2
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During the year, the IMC held two meetings
and dealt with the following matters at the
said meetings or by way of written resolutions:

- accepted the resignation of Mr. Wah
Wang Kei, Jackie, executive director of
the Company and approved the related
announcement and list of directors and
their role and function; and

- noted the change of name of Bermuda
Principal Share Registrar and Transfer
Agent and approved the related
announcement.

The Board has overall responsibility for the system
of internal controls of the Company and for
reviewing its effectiveness on an annual basis under
Code Provision C.2.1. The Group’s internal control
systems comprise an established organizational
structure and comprehensive policies and standards.
Procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against unauthorized use or disposition, to maintain
proper accounting records, for the reliability of
financial information used within the business or
for publication, and to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. The purpose of the
Group’s internal control is to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Group's internal control system includes
following major components:

(1)  Review an organizational and governance
structure with defined responsibility and
delegated authority;
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(2)  Set up stringent policies and procedures for
the appraisal, review and approval of major
capital and recurrent expenditures; and

(3) Review report of operations results against
budgets to the Board regularly.

The Board, through the audit committee, has
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group.

The Company has adopted the rules and procedures
on INEDs" work. The Company has four INEDs,
representing more than one-third of the total
number of the Directors as required under the
Listing Rules. The INEDs are professionals with
extensive experience in the fields of accounting,
finance and business management. Ms. Ma Yin Fan
and Mr. Lee Ming Tung have appropriate accounting
and financial experience. The INEDs do not hold
other positions in the Company other than being
members of the board committees.

During the reporting period, the INEDs had no
objections to the resolutions made by the Board.

During the year, the INEDs earnestly and diligently
performed their duties in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations and the Bye-laws of
the Company. The INEDs actively attended board
meetings during the reporting period, and reviewed
documents presented by the Company. They also
provided professional and constructive advice on the
Company’s major decisions.
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The Company has received confirmation from each
of the INEDs about their independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that the INEDs are completely independent
of the Company, its substantial shareholders and
its affiliates and comply fully with the requirements
concerning the INEDs under the Listing Rules.

It is the external auditor’s responsibility to form an
independent opinion, based on their audit, on the
consolidated financial statements and to report their
opinion solely to the shareholders of the Company,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act and for no other purpose.
They do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the content of the
auditor’s report.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was appointed as the
external auditor of the Group and provided audit
services and non-audit services to the Group. The
Board has accepted the recommendation from the
audit committee on re-appointing Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as the external auditor of the
Group.

During the year, the remuneration paid and payable
to the Company’s external auditor for the provision
of services are as follows:
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility
for preparing the Group’s financial statements
in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The responsibilities
of the Directors are to prepare the financial accounts
for each financial period which gives a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flows for that period. The
Directors also acknowledge that the publication of
the financial statements should be distributed to the
shareholders of the Company in a timely manner.
In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31
December 2013, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently;
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards;
made adjustments and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable and prepared accounts on
a going concern basis. The Directors are also
responsible for keeping proper accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors on
terms no less exacting than the required standard
set out by the Stock Exchange in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries
to all Directors, all Directors have complied with
the required standards of dealings as set out in
the Model Code and the Company’s own code of
conduct during the review year.
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(i) Convening a special general meeting by (i) BREZHEBREEIAE

shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company,
any one or more shareholder(s) holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of
the Company by mail at Unit 2807, 28th
Floor, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two (2) months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21)
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the
provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Putting forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholders shall make a written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the
Company by mail at Unit 2807, 28th Floor,
The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Central,
Hong Kong, specifying their shareholding
information, their contact details and the
proposals they intend to put forward at the
general meetings regarding any specified
transaction/business, together with supporting
documents.
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(iii) Putting forward enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board by addressing them
to the Company Secretary by mail at Unit
2807, 28th Floor, The Center, 99 Queen’s
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong. The
Company Secretary forwards communications
relating to matters within the Board’s
direct responsibilities to the Board and
communications relating to ordinary business
matters to the IMC of the Company.

The Company is responsible for ensuring that
shareholders’ rights are protected. In order to
fulfill this responsibility, the Company endeavours
to maintain a high level of transparency in
communicating with shareholders and the
investment community at large. The Company is
committed to continue to maintain an open and
effective investor communication policy and to
update investors with the relevant information on
its business in a timely and accurate manner, subject
to the relevant regulatory requirements. In order to
ensure effective, clear and accurate communication
with investors, all corporate communications are
arranged and handled by the executive Directors
and designated senior executives according to
established practices and procedures of the
Company.

The Board uses annual general meetings and other
general meetings as the principal channel to meet
and communicate with the shareholders. Registered
shareholders are notified by post for these general
meetings, and the notice of meeting contains the
agenda and the proposed resolutions. Any registered
shareholder is entitled to attend the annual and
special general meetings, provided that their shares
have been recorded in the register of shareholders.
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The Board also encourages shareholders to
participate in these general meetings to maintain an
on-going dialogue with the shareholders.

Extensive information about the Company’s activities
is provided in its interim and annual reports,
which are sent to shareholders, analysts and other
interested parties. The Company's news releases,
announcements and publications are circulated to all
major news media in a timely and accurate manner.

Separate resolutions will be proposed by the
Chairman in respect of each substantially separate
issue at the Company’s forthcoming annual general
meeting. The Chairman, and the chairperson of
the audit committee, the nomination committee,
remuneration committee and the IMC will attend
the forthcoming annual general meeting to answer
questions of shareholders.

The Company Secretary is a full-time employee of
the Company and is reporting to the Board.

All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary to ensure the Board
procedures, and all applicable law, rules and
regulations, are followed.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the
Company Secretary has complied with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.
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15. CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS OF THE
COMPANY
During the year under review, there were no changes
in the Company’s Memorandum of Association
and Bye-laws. A copy of the latest version of the
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws are
available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

46 China New Energy Power Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 59 and 60.

The Board does not recommend payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012:
Nil).

The register of members will be closed from Monday,
26 May 2014 to Wednesday, 28 May 2014 (both dates
inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered in order to ascertain shareholders’ eligibility
to attend and vote at the annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on Wednesday, 28 May 2014
("AGM"). In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
AGM, all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Hong Kong
branch share registrar of the Company, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Rooms 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday,
23 May 2014.

Details of movements of the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Details of the movements in the Company’s convertible
notes, share capital and share options during the year
are set out in notes 25, 26 and 29 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

The Company has no reserves available for distribution as
at 31 December 2013.

The directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Ip Cheng Kuong (Chairman)
Mr. Chiu Kong
Mr. Yeung Kwok Yu
Mr. Kwan Kam Hung, Jimmy
Mr. Chen Guang Lin
Mr. Wu Zhuo Tong
(re-designated from a non-executive
Director with effect from 18 December 2013)
Ms. Catherine Chen (Managing Director)
(resigned with effect from 1 August 2013)
Mr. Wah Wang Kei, Jackie (resigned with effect from
13 September 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Ma Yin Fan

Mr. Leung Hoi Ying

Mr. Yu Pan

Mr. Lee Ming Tung

In accordance with the Bye-laws 87(1) of the Company,
Mr. Ip Cheng Kuong, Mr. Chen Guang Lin, Ms. Ma Yin
Fan and Mr. Leung Hoi Ying will retire at the forthcoming
AGM, and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.
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There are no service contracts which are not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation), in
respect of any director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

At 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations, as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"),
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares
Ordinary shares of US$0.001 each of the Company

Number of issued ordinary shares
held and nature of interest
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percentage of
the issued
share capital

Corporate of the Company
Name of director interest Total HARDF B RT
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(Note 2) (Note 1)
(B1az2) (Hat1)
Mr. Ip Cheng Kuong 74,280,000 74,280,000 3.90%
BIEHEE
Notes: Hiat -

(1) The percentage was calculated based on the Company’s
issued share capital of 1,906,073,250 shares as at 31
December 2013.
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(2) Mr. Ip Cheng Kuong has notified the Company that he is
interested in those shares of the Company held by Global
Zone International Limited, a company of which 51%
and 49% interests are owned by him and his spouse, Ms.
Chang Zhijun, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor the
chief executive of the Company has any interests and short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations as at 31
December 2013.

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set
out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding
companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

Save as disclosed in notes 12a and 32 to the consolidated
financial statements, no contracts of significance to
which the Company, its holding companies or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.
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With reference to the announcement of the Company
dated 29 November 2010 and the circular dated 20
December 2010, on 29 November 2010, Allywing entered
into the Management Agreement with Harvest Day, a
company of which 60% issued share capital is held by a
sister of Mr. Zhang Xi, the former joint chairman and an
executive director of the Company, who resigned with
effect from 21 May 2012. Pursuant to the Management
Agreement, Harvest Day would provide management
and consultancy services to Allywing in connection with
the Xi'an Project. Allywing would pay to Harvest Day
an inclusive management fee of HK$50,000,000 by 3
installments. The resolution approving the Management
Agreement and the annual caps of management fee
payable to Harvest Day was passed at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 6 January 2011. The
first installment of HK$23,000,000 was paid on 7 January
2011 in accordance with terms and conditions of the
Management Agreement. The Management Agreement
constituted a continuing connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
disclosure regarding the Management Agreement has been
made in accordance with the requirements under Chapter
14A to the Listing Rules. During the reporting year, no
project management fee was paid or payable under the
Management Agreement.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the sale and
purchase agreement in relation to the Allywing Disposal,
the Management Agreement had to be terminated prior to
the completion of the Allywing Disposal. The Management
Agreement was terminated on 26 August 2013 and the
Allywing Disposal was completed on 3 September 2013.
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The Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, have reviewed and confirmed that the
continuing connected transaction of the Company was
entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Company; (ii) either on normal commercial terms or,
if there are not sufficient comparable transactions to judge
whether they are on normal commercial terms, on terms
no less favourable to the Group than terms available to or
from (as appropriate) independent third parties; and (iii) in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transaction in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an
unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transaction as
disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange and the auditor has
reported their conclusion that the disclosed continuing
connected transaction:

(i) has been approved by the Board;
(i) is in accordance with the pricing policies of the

Group (if the transactions involve provision of goods
or services by the Group);
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(i)  has been entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing
the transaction; and

(iv)  has not exceeded the annual caps as previously
disclosed.

As at 31 December 2013, the interests or short positions
of persons other than a director or chief executive of
the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register maintained under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares
Ordinary shares of US$0.001 each of the Company
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of  the issued share

ordinary shares capital of the

Name of shareholder Capacity held Company

EARRATEET
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(Note 1)

(B1iE1)

Ng Leung Ho Beneficial owner 150,000,000 7.87%
RRF BEaBEAA

So Chi Ming Beneficial owner 250,000,000 1135112196
#2 A BEaBEAA

Note: LiEss

(1) The percentages were calculated based on the Company’s
issued share capital of 1,906,073,250 shares as at 31
December 2013.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions
in the share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2013.
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Directors’ Report
EEEWmE

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is
formulated on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided, having
regard to their duties, responsibilities and contribution
to the Company, the prevailing market conditions, time
commitment and the desirability of performance-based
remuneration.

The Company and its subsidiaries have adopted share
option schemes as an incentive to directors and eligible
employees, details of the schemes are set out in note 29
to the consolidated financial statements.

During the reporting year and the year 2012, purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s total purchases in the reporting
year and year 2012.

Owing to the nature of its revenue received in the reporting
year, the Group has no customers.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate
of a director or a shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital) has an interest in any of the
Group's five largest suppliers or customers.
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Directors’ Report
EEEWmE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the applicable law of Bermuda
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

During the year, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules during the year and up to the date of this
report.

A resolution will be proposed at the AGM to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Ip Cheng Kuong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR TR =

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA NEW ENERGY POWER GROUP LIMITED
FEFERE N REERAF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China New Energy Power Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 59 to 175, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor's Report
VR TR =

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR TR =

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at
31 December 2013, and of its profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
e A M E MR E W R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
A E—=Ff - A=+—HIFFE

2013 2012
—F—= —E——4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HiaE THET FET
Turnover EER 7 250 250
Other income HABYWA 8 4,581 1,070
Other gains and losses H s RESE 9 60,133 80,763
Administrative expenses THEAR (28,749) (34,868)
Finance costs =D ®iN 10 (15,936) (18,973)
Profit before taxation B 5 BT A 20,279 28,242
Taxation 18 11 - _
Profit for the year REE imF 12 20,279 28,242
Other comprehensive income Hib2mE K=
(expense) (%)
Items that will not be subsequently — A#E T @REFHHIEE
reclassified to profit or loss Bm A
Exchange differences arising on NITE 525 S EAL
translation to presentation currency  ZFEH =% 5,407 (368)
Total comprehensive income AEE2ME
for the year W4z 25,686 27,874
Profit (loss) for the year REZHERN (BE)
attributable to: JE(REE 5
Owners of the Company AN 24,416 32,659
Non-controlling interests FEVERR R 2 (4,137) (4,417)

20,279 28,242




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
e A M E MR E W R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F—=F+-A=+—FALFE

2013 2012
—F—= —E——4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HiaE FET FHET

Total comprehensive income 2HKE (FAX)

(expense) attributable to: BEER(EE D -
Owners of the Company Vi /N I3 423 28,134 32,298
Non-controlling interests FEVERR A 2 (2,448) (4,424)
25,686 27,874

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE SRERN (BE) 13

— Basic — ®EK HK1.28 HK1.91
cents &1l cents A1
— Diluted — 58 HK1.28 HK(1.29)

cents &1L cents 7L




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AR R

At 31 December 2013

R-F—=F+-A=+—1

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
orz3 FExT FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB R EE 15 67 3,317
Prepaid lease payments AR A FRIE 16 - 5113
Investment properties wEYE 17 90,571 -
Other receivables H b e W FRIR 18 94,702 -
185,340 8,430
Current assets mENEE
Properties under development BREPYE 19 - 610,669
Held-for-trading investments BIEEEKRE 20 41,486 25,185
Other receivables H fih jE Y I8 18 205,404 14,010
Deposits and prepayments e MR EIAE 889 6,789
Bank balances and cash RITEHEBRNIE S 21 37,016 33,265
284,795 689,918
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H R I8 22 4,159 42,836
Amounts due to non-controlling XN IEENG]
shareholders of subsidiaries Bl S 23 - 26,156
Other borrowings — amount due HigEE —
within one year —FADHEHE 24 - 17,191
4,159 86,183
Net current assets mENE EFE 280,636 603,735
Total assets less current liabilities BEERLEAR 465,976 612,165
Non-current liability EmBEE
Convertible notes EE S 25 178,972 134,694

287,004

477,471




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AR R

At 31 December 2013

RoF—=F+=A=+—A

2013 2012
—ET—= —E——F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Mt et FHET FET
Capital and reserves BRI

Share capital BTN 26 14,895 14,895
Reserves B 272,109 243,975

Equity attributable to owners RARRREGER
of the Company 287,004 258,870
Non-controlling interests FEVERR A - 218,601
287,004 477,471

The consolidated financial statements on pages 59 to 175 HNFSOE R F175E V85 BEHERD
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of R-_E—NE=A -+ +tHEEEZ=Z@A
Directors on 27 March 2014 and are signed on its behalf RiZERE  WHTNEERERE

by:

Yeung Kwok Yu Kwan Kam Hung, Jimmy
5 B E AiRs

Executive Director Executive Director

HITEF HITEF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

ARe RARE B R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE—FT—=—F+_A=1—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARREL
Exchange  Capital Accumulated Non-
Share Share  Capital  General translation redemption (losses) controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits  Sub-total interests Total
E4ED Zit FER
ke ROEE E5RE  -REE  EXRE fife  (B8) A At B H

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Thr TAnr  TAr  TEr  TEr  TEn Thr  ThAr  TEr  Tin
(Notea) ~ (Note b)
(Wia) — (Wib)
At 1 January 2012 W-E-—%-f-H 35,465 - 4289 225 2,1M 34 (250,808)  (208,684) 215353 6,669
Exchange differences arising on translation AT E& &% A2
of functional currency to presentation EEBELZELER
currency - - - - (361) - - (361) 1) (368)
Profit (loss) for the year RERHRR (BB - - - - - - 32,659 32,659 (4.417) 28,242
Total comprehensive income (expense) FEEREMA (Fx) 48
for the year - - - - (361) - 32,659 32,298 (4,424) 27,874
Capital injection from a non-controlling ~~ REFEERER2HE
shareholder - - - - - - - - 6,911 6,911
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 28) HEMBAR (Hi228) - - - - - - - - 761 761
Issue of shares upon conversion of RERTARS R
convertible notes Bk 23,758 411498 - - - - - 43525 - 43525
Reduction of share capital upon capital REABERHHRA
reorganisation (44328)  (411,498) - - - - 455,826 - - -
At 31 December 2012 RZE——%+-f=1-H 14,895 - 4,289 225 1,750 34 231,677 258870 218,601 477,41
Exchange differences arising on TENEESAZS
translation of functional currency to f%ﬂ%EEZERﬁE
presentation currency = = = = 3718 = = 3718 1,689 5407
Profit (oss) for the year RERET (B8) - - - - - - M6 446 (413) 20279
Total comprehensive income (expense) REEREANA (BX) &8
for the year - - - - 3718 - 24,416 28,134 (2,448) 25,686
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 26) WERBAR (#i28) = = : (225 (4573) (34) 483 - (216,153)  (216,153)
At 31 December 2013 RZF-ZE+ZA=1-H 14,895 = 4,289 - 895 - 266,925 287,004 - 287,004
Notes: =2
(@)  Capital reserve represents the reserve arising from the (a) ERREBAR NN FETCEEBE
group restructuring which took place in 1996. PR AR -
(b)  General reserve comprises Enterprise Expansion Fund and (b) —BEHEVEFEARLNBESETHS

General Reserve Fund set aside by certain subsidiaries
in the People’s Republic of China in accordance with
the memorandum and articles of association of those
subsidiaries.

NARBHENB AR ZABMERRZRE
MARMBE L EXBRES N —RER



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEESRER
For the year ended 31 December 2013

o E— A=+ —AULFEE

2013 2012
—E-=F &
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Wit TET FTAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES geEy
Profit before taxation BREE A& A 20,279 28,242
Adjustments for: RRE
Release of prepaid lease payments R A TR - 117
Depreciation of property, plant ¥ - BELRXETE
and equipment 761 1,025
Finance costs AR 15,936 18,973
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz e (66,452) (24,215)
Gain on disposal of held-for-trading HEREEERE 2B
investments (69) -
Imputed interest income on deferred EEEWARE 2 HEFEWA
consideration receivables (3,912) -
Written off of property, plant and equipment #5472 - BiE k& & 41 =
Write back of other payables 0B EL At FE ST 5RO (5.458) -
Loss on early redemption of convertible notes 12 R EIA[ R Z1E v E518 - 3,162
Interest income FBUA (666) (1,012)
Net loss (gain) on derivative TSI AY
financial instruments BB (ks) $8 28,342 (77,703)
Net (gain) loss on held-for-trading BEEEREZ
investments (s) BT (16,496) 17,993
Operating cash flows before movements EEBRCRYRLERENE
in working capital (27,694) (33,418)
Increase in properties under development — ZERE A Y)EE N (34,866) (33,859)
Decrease (increase) in other receivables H e EIE R D (1) 481 (1,094)
(Increase) decrease in deposits and e RFERFIE (BmM)
prepayments (3,686) 1,007
Increase in other payables Hoh & BRIEE AN 36,833 8,975
Net decrease in held-for-trading investments 15{EE Z1% &7 55 264 [
Decrease in amounts due to directors ERHBARNESETERD
of subsidiaries F (4,388)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& EEfAREBE (28,668) (62,777)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES R&EEH
Consideration from disposal of food BREERMINTIK
processing and distribution operation received 7 $5 %% 2 K {8 4,497 11,646
Interest received BIRFE 309 1,012
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  EEBW¥ - BiE k& (505) (223)
Additions to investment properties REREMF (870) =
Acquisition of subsidiary UG- =N 2F (86,325) =
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 28 102,843 -
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES #R&EEEFEREFE 19,949 12,435




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
/\‘/\ Iﬁ\//\ﬁlgﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE —FE—=F+_HA=F+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_fF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hist TET FTAT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEER
Advances from non-controlling shareholders 3K B Ffi B 22 Rl 3EZE IR AR 3R 2 25K
of subsidiaries 30,087 1,681
Proceed from issue of convertible notes BITARREE 25508 = 120,000
Raised of other borrowings —v—x,\‘rﬁlfjai?é’\ - 17,191
Capital contribution from a non-controlling KB 3FERRE 2)F &
shareholder - 6,911
Repayment of other borrowings BEEMEE (17,191) (1,523)
Redemption of convertible notes BO T REEE = (90,000)
Interest paid BERFE = (279)
Repayment of obligation under BERREMERS
a finance lease - (77)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RETBFREREFE 12,896 53,904
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND BeRBEEEBEEMNTFH
CASH EQUIVALENTS 4,177 3,562
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FEVReRBELEEERB
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 33,265 30,226
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE ExgssovE
CHANGES (426) (523)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EXEER
AT THE END OF THE YEAR Re%MEER

represented by bank balances and cash NRITEBRRERR 37,016 33,265




Notes to the Conso
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2013
o E— A=+ —AULFEE

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as
an exempted company with limited liability and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). As
at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,
the Company did not have an immediate and an
ultimate holding company. The address of the
registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate
Information of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") while the functional
currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB”) and
the functional currencies of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are RMB and HK$. The directors of the
Company consider the presentation currency in HK$
is more useful for its current and potential investors.

The Company acts as an investment holding
company. The principal activities of its subsidiaries
are investment in securities and property investment
and development business.

idated Financial Statements

RAB IR BREFMEKL 2 ERR R
BREERRA  BROREBHERS
FIERAR ([BRFT]) £ R
T—=F+A=t+—HEZZ—Z=
F+-A=+—H ARRLTEHE
NEEZER AR o NAR 2 TEMEsE
GEREFEEEMBHNAFRAFE

B -

REVBRRABITINE - MART]
ZNBEEEBARE - ARF X EMH
BRrzERAR/RARE KB
L ARBIEFRR  WETLERZ
JIEREHEEMNEEREERRE
F o

ARFR—KKREZEB AT o B TH
BRBIZEZXRBR/BESFKRE  M=E
BRERMEERE -



Notes to the Conso
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2013
o E— == A=t —HILFE

The Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") for the
first time in the current year:

idated Financial Statements
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Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

Amendments to
HKAS 1

HKAS 19 (as revised

in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised

in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised

in 2011)

HK(IFRIC) — INT 20

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 cycle

Disclosures — Offsetting
financial assets and financial
liabilities

Consolidated financial
statements, joint
arrangements and
disclosure of interests in
other entities: Transition
guidance

Consolidated financial
statements

Joint arrangements

Disclosure of interests in
other entities
Fair value measurement

Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income
Employee benefits

Separate financial statements

Investments in associates
and joint ventures

Stripping costs in the

production phase of
a surface mine
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B —F——F+_HA=+—HIFE

B T3P oh - BN B R E AT

Except as described below, the application of other

new and revised HKFRSs in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and position for the current and
prior years and/or the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of items
of other comprehensive income”

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS
1 “Presentation of items of other comprehensive
income”. Upon the adoption of the amendments to
HKAS 1, the Group's “statement of comprehensive
income” is renamed as the “statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income”.
Furthermore, the amendments to HKAS 1 require
additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of
other comprehensive income are grouped into two
categories: (a) items that will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss and (b) items that may
be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items
of other comprehensive income is required to be
allocated on the same basis — the amendments
do not change the option to present items of
other comprehensive income either before tax or
net of tax. The amendments have been applied
retrospectively, and hence the presentation of items
of other comprehensive income has been modified
to reflect the changes. Other than the above
mentioned presentation changes, the application
of the amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in
any impact on profit or loss, other comprehensive
income and total comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B —FE—=—F+_HA=F+—HIFE

HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single
source of guidance for, and disclosures about, fair
value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is
broad: the fair value measurement requirements of
HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument items
and non-financial instrument items for which other
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value (e.g. net realisable value for the purposes of
measuring inventories or value in use for impairment
assessment purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the
price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid
to transfer a liability, in the case of determining the
fair value of a liability) in an orderly transaction in
the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions.
Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Also,
HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In
accordance with the transitional provisions of HKFRS
13, the Group has not made any new disclosures
required by HKFRS 13 for the 2012 comparative
period. Other than the additional disclosures in notes
17 and 25, the application of HKFRS 13 has not had
any material impact on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.
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The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

Amendments to Annual improvements to

idated Financial Statements
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HKFRSs HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle?
Amendments to Annual improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle?
Amendments to Mandatory effective date of
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 9 and transition
HKFRS 7 disclosures?
Amendments to Investment entities'
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27
Amendments to Defined benefit plans:
HKAS 19 Employee contributions?
Amendments to Offsetting financial assets
HKAS 32 and financial liabilities’
Amendments to Recoverable amount
HKAS 36 disclosures for non-financial
assets’
Amendments to Novation of derivatives and
HKAS 39 continuation of hedge
accounting’
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts®
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: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2014.
i Available for application — the mandatory effective

date will be determined when the outstanding
phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2014, with limited exceptions.

E Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements
beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
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HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010
includes the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for hedging accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as

follows:

All recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement”
are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods.
All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values
at the end of subsequent reporting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.

idated Financial Statements
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HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

o With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability's credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of
the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit
or loss was presented in profit or loss.

The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types
of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments
that qualify for hedging instruments and the types
of risk components of non-financial items that
are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced
with the principle of an “economic relationship”.
Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness
is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure
requirements about an entity’s risk management
activities have also been introduced.

idated Financial Statements
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HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

The director of the Company anticipates that the
application of HKFRS 9 will not have significant
impact on the amounts reported in respect of the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities based
on the Group’s financial instruments reported at the
end of the reporting period.

The director of the Company anticipates that
the application of other new and revised HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except
for certain derivative financial instruments and
investment properties, which are measured at fair
values as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods or services.

idated Financial Statements
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or
value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

RNHERRFTERPTIS2EERE
BKFERZPHEEEWESEEER
BAXNHER M AwZEBREE
B A BRI AE A M A ERIT
it EMB2RERAEANYHEE
SRETEFSEREEXRENG
o AAKREBRGEFEEHREND
FERSERZEFRM  WMEFFEY
BHRPIEFER IR ER TN
RNHETRUEEEETE - EBNEE
B 15 ¥R & ZE B 55 2 5% 88 B A9 LA IR £ %
TR Z BREBBEFERIE17
HBEANHEERS - WRERFE
B MEE T B IR FEDE
B BUWHESHENFE2RANA
B FHEKT BT ERFE365HH
e B ERRSDN

AN P HHREMS - A FEAE
REAFEFENG ABERABRE
B R HERENEWABIRE L EE
MEBEEUESBAE & F-RHF
= HBWT

s FHBAREBESEEBNE
HERABUSHEREES R
BERERMS ZHRE CREH

%)

s F_HBWABEBEEMREEXR
EEERXBEEMAIBRE 2B A
BB (F—RABRENRER
58 K

s FZRBABEBEEEEXARE
Al B AR B A B ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mRNEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

o E— == A=t —HILFE

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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Business combinations (Continued) ¥XE0 (E)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets RUEER - FTUREE 2 AT 38R & B R P

acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised REEZBERATERR - XA

at their fair value, except that: MEBRS -

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets e EREBBEEEXBENREES
or liabilities related to employee benefit BNZHEB s EESEE -
arrangements are recognised and measured in D RBRBER BT ERIE 1258
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and FR1GM R BB T ERIFE 1958
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively; EERNERIL T E

. liabilities or equity instruments related o HWWEARIARMNAERZ
to share-based payment arrangements MRZBES AR EE R 7 LARK
of the acquiree or share-based payment R ERE 2 A R HEEAR U
arrangements of the Group entered into to BARIUKRMDAER 2 MRE
replace share-based payment arrangements A BEXRATATR
of the acquiree are measured in accordance Wi A HARIE BB B EmE %
with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the BIZE25% LARR 0 7= B 7t 2 3R
acquisition date (see the accounting policy A8 (RTXEHER) &
below); and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified s WREEEBVBEMEERFESH
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS FIEHEZIERBEERE R
5 Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale and IEREXB O BRFTFIELEZ
Discontinued Operations are measured in BE (B8R AIREZ

accordance with that standard. AEBIFTE
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Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If,
after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amount receivable for goods sold in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Dividend income from held-for-trading investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s rights to receive
payment have been established.

Interest income from financial assets is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can
be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account
their estimated residual values, using the straight
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss
for the period in which they arise.
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Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Properties under development

Properties under development for sale in the
ordinary course of business is included in current
assets and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined as
the estimated selling price for the properties less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sales. Costs relating to the development of
properties include land cost, construction cost and
other direct development expenditure.

Impairment losses on assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Impairment losses on assets (Continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight line basis.

BEEZREBSE (&)

FJ Wi [B] 5 B R 22 R 85 5 B AN B {5
AEEMER 2BEE - B HER
BER - S RERERETIAAR
REFHSHERRREEREER
BRE (et ARKRERE H AR
EHARE) 2BRHARRUBER
' -

HEE (KRRNSELEM) 2fhsTA
e eREREREE " MBEREE
(IR ESELEN) 2REERREK
EHAIRE S FE o BERRARFNE
PR o

R EEELRED - MBEREEL
REESEEEFRGT 2T KkEE
B EMENEEENSERERE
E(ETELEN) REBEFER
RBEERAEE 2 REE - M
BEEERD 2 BREASEDZ QKA -

HE

RS IR T B B K B2 B &
Ol sRedE FARA - BIBRESES
MAMERS - MEREMEERD A

AREEERAHANA
REMENFEEFHEERRNAER
EHERBHAN - MAI LKL HEES
22N 2 WO e M 2 A2 TR T B R
AANB AR RS FSORD



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F—=F+-A=+—FALFE

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
tax as reported in consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale.
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Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities. Current and deferred tax is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group’'s financial assets are classified into
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL"”) and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instrument.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL represent
financial assets held-for-trading. A financial asset is
classified as held-for-trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near future; or

o it is part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividends
or interest earned on the financial assets and is
included in turnover in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
other receivables and bank balances) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVPTL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
the reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will

enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

idated Financial Statements

SRIA (&)

THEEHE
BRIEATFEFABRSZEREEININ
2 & BB E T ¥R B A R AT
EEERETR - BERMEERTIX
BBHE—BRZBERFMERE
BEEREMEE 2 RKIR
TEXIFE AR ALEIRRE -

BE FERE B2

o ETAIBFHBEINEEVH
R - sk

o ERAK  MBHISIERHE
gZAREMN &K

o [ERABRAIERESETTH
SR

pETENEREE (PINEMLE
W) M5 - TEEBELRER
BESRTEE —HRIERE - BIK
RBEAAHBRECEBEEEER
SEIBENGRE - AENEBBETY
EERZBRIRFIENM » ARBERK
o [ A ARt 3R R MR R TR R BB (B
EAVIS AR R O ) o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2013
o E— A=+ —AULFEE

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount
of impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in the subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including other payables,
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries, other borrowings and liability
component of convertible notes) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

SRIA (&)

THEERKATA
AEEETERRTZEHABNRE
ATERFAEIVEHLREART AR S
REBRRATACZEESEASH
BERBA -

BATARERAEEEER M
(BRHMBRAERAR) <EAEH - K
NABTZRATETIAB WA
RINRR B R B TAARER

SRS

BERNZFER —BEMBHEARR
At E S R B E R BE A AR A R 3 B R
BXHMTTE -  BERMNER-—BES
MEENENFHNEEENE IR
BRI ERREF EENFHEAE
A ARKRSWAR (BEMEXN
HWEBRBEERANEZER - X
SRR EABEEHITE) WITRA
R R o

FEHIRERF R EERER o

TRBE

CRAE (BREMENKE - BN
BB A RIFEE IR AR IR ~ B btEE
MAal g BRERERD) HREAE
R RORIZ B PR FT R ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mRNEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F—=F1 - A=1—HLFE

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible notes that contains liability component,
conversion option derivative and early redemption
option derivatives

Convertible notes issued by the Group that contain
both liability and embedded derivatives (conversion
option and early redemption option which is not
closely related to the host liability component) are
classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be settled
other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Group's own equity instruments is a conversion
option derivative. At the date of issue, both the
liability and embedded derivatives are recognised at
fair value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible notes is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

The embedded derivatives are remeasured at
their fair value immediately prior to the date of
redemption or conversion of the convertible notes
with changes in fair value being recognised in profit
or loss. For redemption of convertible notes, the
resulting gain or loss (calculated at the difference
between the redemption amount paid and the
carrying amount of the convertible notes, being
the aggregate amount of the liability component,
conversion option derivative and early redemption
option derivative) is recognised in profit or loss. For
conversion of convertible notes, the carrying amount
of the convertible notes is transferred to equity
with the resulting shares issued being recorded as
additional share capital at nominal value of the
shares and the excess of the carrying amount of
the convertible notes over the nominal value of the
shares being recorded in share premium.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible notes that contains liability component,
conversion option derivative and early redemption
option derivatives (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible notes are allocated to the liability
and embedded derivatives in proportion to their
relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the
embedded derivatives are charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period
of the convertible notes using the effective interest
method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expired, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors and employees of
the Company

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date is recognised as an expense in full
at the grant date when the share options granted
vest immediately, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share option reserve).

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to accumulated profits (losses).

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

RGBERZHERXS
BEFANGEERES 2 BTE

R2ERF L AR L BRE R
BETE DERZRBAFEREE
BB AR BV 57 8 2 1% B B B
RRFAX - YN Em (BREREE)
fEAERELE N ©

REEREET TR - SR RE AR
BRI RDIEE -
BAENRE R ROV EN IR B
HARETTE - RISE R RE AR (R
R TBHERERar (BR) -

g
RREASEE TS ERIER /M5
HRE - URBERZNETEAINE
% OOMNE) BT ZRIRRHAHZ
[ERAEDGEER (ZEREEE
BREETEQEREZER) Sk -
RIS B RE - DN REE 2 B
HEREAZEREHHRE - RESL
RAAINEFE 2 SFEB AT E
HgE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B —FE—=—F+_HA=F+—HIFE

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in the profit or loss for the
period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
the reporting period. Income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of exchange translation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF")
scheme are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered services entitling them
to the contribution. Payments made to state-
managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with
as payments to defined contribution schemes where
the Group’s obligations under the schemes are
equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution
retirement benefits scheme.
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of
the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors of the Company have made in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors of the
Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolio and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through
sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group's deferred
taxation on investment properties, the directors of
the Company have determined that the presumption
that the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the
Group shall recognised deferred taxes on changes
in fair value of investment properties situated in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") as these
properties are subject to land appreciation taxes
and income tax upon disposal of its investment
properties. Deferred tax liabilities in respect of
land appreciation taxes in the PRC are determined
based on valuations of the investment properties
performed by independent professional valuers and
on the assumption that the values are the actual
proceeds to be received from the sale of these
properties. No deferred taxation on investment
properties was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2013 as there is no significant change in
the fair value of the Group’s investment properties
during the year.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value of embedded conversion option and early
redemption option of convertible notes

The directors of the Company use their judgement
in selecting an appropriate valuation technique to
determine fair value of embedded conversion option
and early redemption option of the convertible notes
which are not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners
are applied. The fair value of the derivative financial
liabilities are determined at the end of the reporting
period with movements in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. In estimating the fair value of
these derivative financial liabilities, the Group uses
independent valuation which is based on various
inputs and estimates based on quoted market rates
and adjusted for specific features of the instrument
(see note 25). If the inputs and estimates applied
in the model are different, the carrying amount of
these derivative financial liabilities will change. The
carrying value of the embedded conversion option
and early redemption option of convertible notes at
31 December 2013 were HK$101,834,000 (2012:
HK$73,492,000).
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of consideration receivable from
the disposal of food processing and distribution
operation in 2010

As also described in note 18, the Group has
disposed of Prowealth Holdings Group Limited
and its subsidiaries which operates the Group’s
food processing and distribution operation in
2010. The total consideration from the disposal
was HK$165,000,000, of which HK$122,000,000
was received as a deposit in cash in 2009 and
the remaining balance of HK$43,000,000 was
recognised as consideration receivable upon the
completion of the disposal in January 2010 and
was due to be settled within 18 months from the
disposal date in June 2011. On the settlement
due date, the purchaser, Sincerity Shine Holdings
Limited (“Sincerity Shine”) has default its payment
of the remaining balance and, subsequently, the
Company, Sincerity Shine and the purchaser’s
guarantor (Mr. Li Geng, beneficial owner of Sincerity
Shine) has entered into a number of supplemental
deed for deferring the settlement date of the
remaining balance and charging interest at 6%
per annum on the outstanding amount. Since the
completion of the disposal, the Group has received
from Sincerity Shine an amount of approximately
HK$36,076,000 (including interest payment of
HK$1,718,000). Pursuant to the last supplemental
deed entered between the Company, Sincerity
Shine and the purchaser’s guarantor, the settlement
of the remaining payment was due in May 2013,
however, Sincerity Shine has further default the
settlement on the said due date. At 31 December
2013, the consideration receivable amounts to
HK$9,214,000, including interest of HK$572,000
(2012: HK$13,354,000 and interest of HK$216,000).
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of consideration receivable from
the disposal of food processing and distribution
operation in 2010 (Continued)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
on 29 January 2014, the Group has filed a legal
proceeding to Haikou Municipal Intermediate
People’s Court (8 A M # & A K )= Ft) against
Sincerity Shine, Mr. Li Geng and Hainan Jiadexin
Foodstuff Company Limited (BEEEERLAER
/27]) (“Hainan Jiadexin”) (a subsidiary of Sincerity
Shine) for settlement of the outstanding principal
and interest, and to restrict the transfer of the
major assets of Hainan Jiadexin. As at the date of
this report, the Group has not yet received any
judgement from the Haikou Municipal Intermediate
People’s Court. If the judgement from the
relevant court is against the Group, the remaining
consideration receivable may not be recoverable
and the amount would be impaired. However,
the directors of the Company considered that no
impairment is necessary for the current year as
the process of recovering the debt is under legal
proceeding with the relevant courts in the PRC and
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the amount is still recoverable based on the opinion
from the Group’s PRC legal counsel.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes
Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. The board of directors of the Company
has designated a team to determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation
of the Group's investment properties. At the end
of each reporting period, the management of the
Group works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and
Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group will first
consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can
be derived observable quoted prices in the active
market. When Level 2 inputs are not available,
the Group will adopt valuation techniques that
include Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes
of the fluctuations will be reported to the board of
directors of the Company. Information about the
valuation techniques and inputs used in determining
the fair value of the Group’s investment properties
are disclosed in note 17.

T TRERZEZEERR (&)
D FEFERIGE T
AHH2HME - AREHLNDEER
BERAVENE - ARAREFETE
—HBEXAER AT EFEETEE
HETERBARIE -

AEEFERAHESENTS A BREH
B UWEEAREERENENQF
{8 - Rl EE — R ARE - AKH
REE=TRERMEMYAEER
BYEETHE - NSREHKR - K
SEEEERES BRI EERME R
B BE_BRE=FRFENE
R TE MR TE B E MG ETA R AR
B AEEEHLEELRANE R
BABE (AI{T4EB/ERMES A B
BEZBABE) o WMALEE — R
ABEAHER  HEEESREAS
F=RBABRZGERN - HEE
NFEEHRLEBRED  RBREK
EAARAEZTE®RE - ARETA
SEREME A FEEMABERMN
REABERZEHD R 78 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2013
o E— A=+ —AULFEE

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s held-for-
trading investments and derivative component of
convertible notes, the Group uses market-observable
data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. At
the end of each reporting period, the management
of the Group works closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The
Company has a designated team to determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for
Level 3 fair value measurements. Where there is
a material change in the fair value of the assets/
liabilities, the causes of the fluctuations will be
reported to the board of directors of the Company.
Note 6 provides detailed information about the
valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions
used in the determination of the fair value of the
Group's financial assets/liabilities at FVTPL.
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The Group manages its capital to ensure that the
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, convertible notes, bank
balances and cash as disclosed in respective notes
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a semi-annually basis. As part of this
review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
will balance its overall capital structure through the
new shares issues as well as the issue of new debt
or the redemption of existing debt.
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Categories of financial instruments SRIAEHR
2013 2012
—_E—= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHETT

Financial assets CREE

Loans and receivables (including cash BN EWFIE (B1F
RekReEEER) 337,122 47,273
BAVERABRZ

and cash equivalent)
Financial assets at FVTPL

TEEE 41,486 25,185
378,608 72,458
Financial liabilities o =R
Amortised cost DN 77,207 119,923
Derivative financial liabilities TESMAR 101,834 73,492
179,041 193,415
Financial risk management objectives and HMEEREER N RBER

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
held-for-trading investments, other receivables,
other payables, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, other borrowings,
convertible notes, and bank balances and cash.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.
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ncial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Market risk

(i)

Currency risk

At the end of the reporting period certain
subsidiaries of the Company have certain
assets and liabilities (details are disclosed in
respective notes) are denominated in foreign
currencies, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at end of the reporting
period are as follows:

idated Financial Statements

BBEREEENWRBER (F)

5 B8R
(i)  SNERER

RRFETHE R RREHREH
RRBHEAE T AINEFHEZ
BEKAE (FEREENE
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[\ o 7R (B3R B I 4 AT AA] S
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EESNERR  YEBRER
2 B B B K SN I L e o 1T B
e

AEEAINEFECEREE
REBABENREHERKZ
FREEWNT :

2013 2012
—=E—= —E——4F
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =N BE =R
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHETT FHET
Hong Kong dollars  #7T 40,984 77,183 42,852 69,007
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to exchange
rate fluctuations of Hong Kong dollars. The
following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% (2012: 5%) increase in RMB against
the Hong Kong dollars while all other variables
are held constant. 5% (2012: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% (2012: 5%) change
in foreign currency rates.

idated Financial Statements
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ncial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis includes monetary
items where the denomination of the balances
is in a currency other than the functional

currency of the respective group entities. A
positive number below indicates an increase
in profit for the year where RMB strengthen
5% (2012: 5%) against the relevant currency
while a negative number represents a decrease
in profit for the year. For a 5% (2012: 5%)
weakening of RMB against the relevant

idated Financial Statements
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currency, there would be an equal and T E o
opposite impact on the result for the year.
2013 2012
—E—= —E——-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Hong Kong dollars BIT 1,810 1,251

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
currency risk as the year and exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.
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ncial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

At 31 December 2012 and 2013, the Group
is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed rate convertible notes. The
Group also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to bank deposits. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise. The fixed rate
short-term bank deposits is subject to cash
flow interest rate risk as the fixed deposits are
renewed every one to three months.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for bank deposits at the end
of the reporting period. For short-term bank
deposits, the analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of bank deposits at the end of
the reporting period was existing for the
whole year. A 50 (2012: 50) basis point
increase or decrease is used which represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If the interest rates had been 50 (2012: 50)
basis points higher and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
ended 31 December 2013 would increase by
HK$139,000 (2012: increase by HK$125,000).
For interest rates 50 (2012: 50) basis points
lower, the changes to the Group’s profit for
the year ended 31 December 2013 would be
insignificant assuming bank balances carrying
interest rate at 0.01% per annum drop to
zero.

idated Financial Statements
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ncial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
interest rate risk as the year end exposure
does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Other price risk

The Group was exposed to equity price risk
arising from the conversion option derivative
and early redemption option (derivative
components) of the convertible notes. The fair
values of the conversion option derivative and
early redemption option were calculated using
the binomial option pricing model. Details of
the derivative financial instrument is set out in
note 25.

The Group is also exposed to equity security
price risk through its held-for-trading
investments. The management of the Group
manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different
risk. The Group’'s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity instruments operating
in manufacturing investment industry section
quoted in the Stock Exchange. The directors of
the Company will monitor the price risk and
will consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise. If the market prices of the
held-for-trading investments had been 10%
higher/lower, the Group’s profit for the year
would increase/decrease by HK$4,149,000
(2012: HK$2,519,000).

idated Financial Statements
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
other receivables and the Group does not have any
trade receivables that exposed to credit risk.

At 31 December 2013, the Group has concentration
risk on consideration receivable for disposal
of subsidiaries amounting to HK$299,931,000
(2012: HK$13,354,000), which represented 99%
(2012: 95%) of the total other receivables. The
directors of the Company consider that the credit
risk for the deferred consideration receivable of
HK$290,717,000 at 31 December 2013 arising
from the disposal of a property development project
company (see note 28(b) for details) is satisfactory in
light of the fact that the amount is not yet due for
settlement and the counterparty is a subsidiary of a
company listed in Hong Kong with strong financial
position and good reputation. The consideration
receivable of HK$9,214,000 at 31 December 2013
(2012: HK$13,354,000) arising from the disposal
of the Group’s food processing and distribution
operation in 2010, as mention in note 4, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that
(also based on the opinion from the Group’s PRC
legal counsel), the amount is still recoverable as the
Group is undergoing the process of recovering the
debt through legal proceeding with the relevant
courts in the PRC.

At 31 December 2013, the Group has concentration
risk on its held-for-trading investments with
45% (2012: 67%) of the total held-for-trading
investments concentrated in a single entity which is
listed in Hong Kong.

The credit risk on bank deposits and bank balances
is limited because the counterparties are banks with
good reputation.
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, subject to approval by the board of
directors of the Company when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority.
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its short and long term liquidity
requirements.

The following table details the Group’s contractual
maturity of its major financial liabilities. For financial
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.
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Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

idated Financial Statements

BBEREEENWRBER (F)

mEELERE (F)

Weighted Total
average On Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand 1 year cash flow amount
nE  HNER ABRRL
TR = REE BB1E RESE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% THET TR THER TBT
At 31 December 2013 R=2-=#+Zh=1-H
Other payables Hiv eI 508 - 69 - 69 69
Convertible notes HRERE 24.53 - 120,000 120,000 77,138
69 120,000 120,069 71,207
At 31 December 2012 WZE——F+-A=1—H
Other payables Hib 08 = 15,374 - 15,374 15,374
Amounts due to non-controlling ~ FERTHIB A AR 5E
shareholders of subsidiaries - 26,156 - 26,156 26,156
Convertible notes MHERER 24.53 - 120,000 120,000 61,202
Other borrowings EfhfgE - 17,191 - 17,191 17,191
58,721 120,000 178,721 119,923
Fair value measurement of financial instruments SRTITEZAFLETSE

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on

a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of
these financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s)

and inputs used).

KIFEEEL L\ FlHG BAIAEE

AEEHDTHEERTRABRS
HEMRIZAFEFE - TREHRA
FREEXSeMEERTREE
ZFE R R ERBEET A
RBASIR)
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Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on
a recurring basis (Continued)

idated Financial Statements

ERMTRAZAFVETE (&)

KIFEEEL LN FEFTEN A EE S
BEEREHMBELFE (&)

Fair value
Financial assets/ asat  Fair value Valuation technique(s) and ~ Significant inputs/ Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value
financial liabilities 31.12.2013  hierarchy key input(s) unobservable inputs and sensitivity
K=B-=%
t=A=t+-A EXBARE/
SREESRAR WAYE  ATERE HEFERTERALE TUBRBARE TUBREARBRAVENBARBAE
HK$'000
TEL
Financial assets at FVTPL:
BOVEFABECEREE
Listed equity securities 41,486 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an N/A N/A
EHRAES E—1 active market TER @R
RERTISTHEEEAE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL:
BATEG\ERZeEE:
Derivative components of 101,834 Level 3 The Binomial Option Pricing  Stock price The higher the stock price, the higher the fair value of
convertible notes E=% Model RE the derivative components.

BRRER A TASA
The key inputs are:

. Stock price;

. Exercise price;

. Expected volatility;

. Contractual term; and
. Risk free rate

s W N —

"SRR RES
IREAEE:

RE:
f16efE -
BRI -
. RRE R
. ERRFIE

Risk fee rate
EE R

If the stock price to the valuation model of the derivative
components is 5% higher/lower, while all other variables
were held constant, the fair value of the derivative
component would increase/decrease by HK$8,900,000
and the profit for the year would decrease/increase by
HK$8,900,000

RENS fTEIABHZATELR

T ETAB A2 EERAMBRE LETERS% - fifE
AtRRRIAE  ETANS ZATERENED
8,900,000/ 4 7 %5 5 118,900,000/ T °

The higher the risk free rate, the higher the fair value of
the derivative components.

If the risk free rate to the valuation model of the
derivative components is 50 basis point higher/

lower, or minimum to 0%, while all other variables

were held constant, the fair value of the derivative
component would increase/decrease by HK$724,000 and
HK$468,000 and the profit for the year would decrease/
increase by HK$724,000 and HK$468,000 respectively.

ERBRNEES  fIETARAZATELS -

ATETABA 2 BERLNERBRFE L/ FH50
BE% - AFZEZ0%  MHFELMEUERTE 15
TEBA 2 RTFERLMHD 724,000/ 468,007
TC  REREHEH 724,000 7% 468,0008 T ©
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Fair value measurements of financial SRMIAZATETE (&)
instruments (Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and B EULN FEFTEMTEE D
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on AEEREHEELFE (&)
a recurring basis (Continued)
Except as detailed in the following table, the BRTRAEMEIN RRARESRR
directors of the Company consider that the R AN AR & gk 2 H
carrying amounts of other financial assets and themEELeRMBERABERELA
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the FEMRSE -
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
—E—= —E——F
+=—A=+—8H +=ZA=+—H
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
AREIE NEE AREE NE
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET
Financial liability cRAE
Liability component ARREEZ

of convertible notes =R 77,138 76,166 61,202 60,508
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Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is

observable.

idated Financial Statements

EMITAZAFETE (&)

DFERF

TREHRRFERRIZ A EFE
ZEMT AN - EREABRAF

BZREDR—E=EHK -

At 31 December 2013
R-Z-=Z%+=-A=t-H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E-& k| E=R st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000

THx TEx TET TET

Held-for-trading investments ~ H{EEERE 41,486 - - 41,486
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAFEGF ARG Z

SRARE
Embedded conversion option ~ A[#ERZE 7 NE
and early redemption option AR ERRE
of convertible notes P B HE - - 101,834 101,834
At 31 December 2012
RZE—_f+t_A=t—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E—8 E-H E= @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL THT THL THL

Held-for-trading investments ~ #H{EEERE 25,185 z & 25,185
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BRRTEFABRZ

SRARE
Embedded conversion option AR EZE 7 RE
and early redemption option  A[HAfT ERE K
of convertible notes P EOHE - - 73,492 73,492

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3

during both years.

RREFE £ FREF=

AR A TR -
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Fair value measurements of financial SRMIAZATENE (&)
instruments (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) DN FERE (&)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of TRBEBECF=RRATFETELERN
financial liabilities: T ¢
Embedded
derivatives of
convertible
notes
ARBRREZ
RESTETA
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2012 N—_E——F—H—H 248,461
Total gains or losses Wessk BB 4250 (85,574)
Converted during the year FRER (157,293)
Issued during the year FRET 67,898
At 31 December 2012 R-E——F+=-_A=+—H 73,492
Total gains or losses Wessk B8 4250 28,342

At 31 December 2013 N-E—=F+=-H=+—8H 101,834
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Operating segments are identified on the basis KEDHEUASEERNBREERE
of internal reports about components of the £ UBHNEBEAEEBKHNKE
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief DE ZREDEHIBELERKE
operating decision maker (“CODM") in order (

to allocate resources to segments and to assess
their performance. Reported segment information
is based on internal management reporting
information that is regularly reviewed by executives
directors, being the CODM of the Group. The
measurement policies the Group used for segment
reporting are the same as those disclosed in note 3
above.

The Group’s operations are organised based on the
two business activities which also the information
regularly reported to the CODM. The details of
operating and reportable segments of the Group are
as follows:

o Investments in securities — trading of
securities;
o Property — property development of properties

held for sale and property investment.

In the current year, the CODM has redefined the
property business segment to include property
investment as one of its principal business activity
and renamed this segment as “Property” from
“Property development”. As further disclosed in
notes 27 and 28, during the year, the Group has
acquired certain investment properties (through
acquisition of a subsidiary) for rental/capital
appreciation purpose and also disposed of its
property development project (through disposal of
a subsidiary) in the PRC. The Group has continued
to engage in the property business and operation in
the PRC, hence, in the opinion of the directors, the
disposal of the property development project does
not constitute a discontinued operation.

Turnover from investment in securities business
represents dividend income from held-for-trading
investments.

[E2L2ERKRE]) EMwT - U
PEEREZDELFEEKRR - W
TN REMNDERATES (AIAK
BERLEERRE) CTHEM AR
EEMEER c AEBROBERE
RAZFFEERE XXM E3MKE
FHER e

N

REE 2 & BERIFZMIAZESEEA
B - ENRAERLERRETE
HmE 2 ER - REBZKE R AR

EREFHBAT

s BHFRE-J/HEE:

. DE-BREELHENERD
$IE -

RAEE  TREERRECHME
EBOBEFTEESBRVERE
VHEREFEXRBAS 2 — R -
RN BB IMEER]| B
2R TME] - M EE27 28T —
Faltwm o RER > AREERBEE
MEARIKESE THREMSE - (FEE
RERRERRZ  MEBLENBA
AIHEERNTRE 2 MEREIERE - K
SECHEENTREEEMERZBME
2 At EFRAERYERRIEA
BZHERTER —HERLEER
& o

EHRERG CEXERFTIFERER
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(@) Segment turnover and results
The following is an analysis of the Group'’s
turnover and results by reportable and

operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2013

idated Financial Statements

(a) PTHERBERER
AT RARBRIHREMEED
BZERBLRREDN

BE-®-=£+=-A=+-

HiEFE
Investment
in securities Property Consolidated
EHRE /S &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT THERT
TURNOVER EXRE
External revenue INEBITA 250 - 250
RESULT £
Segment result DEEE 16,784 (10,516) 6,268
Unallocated corporate income ATAEABTRA 4,496
Unallocated corporate expenses F ik NG5 (18,117)
Other gains and losses Heb s R EE 43,568
Finance costs BE AR (15,936)
Profit for the year RNEE w7 20,279



ARE I SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2013
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(a) Segment turnover and results (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

DIREEENESE (£)
BE_T——F+-_A=+—
BILFEE

Investment
in securities Property  Consolidated
BHHRE S CEaS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET FET
TURNOVER EEH
External revenue ANERUT N 250 - 250
RESULT £ |
Segment result VAR CE (17,801) (11,043) (28,844)
Unallocated corporate income EE%" ’“TLISUK 1,070
Unallocated corporate expenses AFAEEARIAX (23,767)
Other gains and losses H{’Mﬂl &Fﬂ@ 98,756
Finance costs BENAK (18,973)
Profit for the year REZHF 28,242

The accounting policies of the operating
segments are the same as the Group's
accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment result represents profit (loss) from
each segment without allocation of central
administrative costs, directors’ salaries, finance
costs, other income and other gains or losses
(excluding the fair value changes and gain/
loss from held-for-trading investments, which
is included in the investment in securities
segment result). This is the measure reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

REDBR B BEREM S
Ptz AN S Bl & 5t BRARR -
DREBEEEPBZER (B
B) (R ADERRITHE
H) -BEEHE BEKA
oAt W A K B A Wi a3 Bk S 18
(TERAFEEHEFHEE
BRE WS /%E’%ﬁ%ﬁ
AAAEZREDEES) °
RAEBREERE %Lﬁ[ﬁ
MMEE RN B M FHERBRZT
B
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(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) S"EBEEREAEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s NTREREERRELED L
assets and liabilities by reportable operating ZEERBGBDNT

segments:

At 31 December 2013 R-BE—=%+=-A=+—H

Investment
in securities Property Consolidated
BERE L/ES &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TER
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NHEEE 41,486 90,571 132,057
Unallocated corporate assets ATHERREE 338,078
Consolidated total assets MEEEBR 470,135
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities NEAE - 2,636 2,636
Unallocated corporate liabilities KY¥PEARARE 180,495
Consolidated total liabilities mEREER 183,131
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(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

idated Financial Statements

(b) PEEERERE (&)

At 31 December 2012 RZEB—Z—F+ZA=+—H
Investment
in securities Property  Consolidated
BARE S CEaS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TAT TAT
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 25,185 610,669 635,854
Unallocated corporate assets AT HEAREE 62,494
Consolidated total assets MR EERRE 698,348
LIABILITIES =R
Segment liabilities "HEER - 42,321 42,321
Unallocated corporate liabilities ATAERARIAE 178,556
Consolidated total liabilities mEBBEEE 220,877

The Group’s unallocated corporate assets at
the end of the reporting period mainly consist
of bank balances and cash, other receivables
and deposits and prepayments. The Group'’s
unallocated corporate liabilities at the end
of the reporting period mainly consist of
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries, convertible notes, other
borrowings and certain other creditors and
accrued expenses.

AEEREHRERERF 2K
TORRREET R BRI
RBLRE - BT RERIER
TF A R FAN IR « REBER
EREHERE 2R TOEA
ARETIr2ERENHEBAR
FEFRRRBR < 53R ~ AT R
E - At EARE THME

5 M fEst

FX e
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() Other segment information () HtaEEHR
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE-ZT-—=F+=ZA=+-
HLEFE
Investment
in securities Property  Unallocated Consolidated
RERE S AAE GRS

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR

Information included in segment  PEZENBEERRE

results/segment assets: ZER
Additions to investment REREME

properties - 870 - 870
Additions to property, plant ANENE  BELRE

and equipment - - 505 505
Depreciation of property, plant %1% - BERRENE

and equipment - - 761 761
Gain on disposal of HEREEERE

held-for-trading investments 7 Wigs 69 - - 69

Z
Net fair value gain on held-for- ~ #HEBERANTE
trading investments Wa 3 16,496 = - 16,496
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(c) Other segment information (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

idated Financial Statements

HthpEER (&)
BE_T——F+-_A=+—
BILFEE

Investment
in securities Property  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
BHRE mE AAHE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET FET FET
Information included in segment  DEEBEDBEEDR
results/segment assets: ZER
Additions to property, plant NEWE  BERRE
and equipment - 167 56 223
Amortisation of prepaid lease  TE{TARAIENIEH 5
payments - - 117 117
Depreciation of property, plant 1% - BRERRETE
and equipment - 923 102 1,025
Net fair value loss on HEEEREATE
held-for-trading investments BT 17,993 - - 17,993

Substantially all of the Group’s operations are
located in the PRC (country of domicile) and
Hong Kong.

Included in the Group’s non-current assets are
amount of HK$67,000 (2012: HK$170,000)
of property, plant and equipment and amount
of HK$94,702,000 (2012: nil) of other
receivables which are located in Hong Kong
and all the remaining non-current assets are
located in the PRC (place of domicile of the
group entities that hold such assets).

Included in the Group's turnover were
dividend income generated from investment in
securities and were derived from Hong Kong.

7R B B AR5 E R
B (BEE) RES -

AEEERDEEBERH
#67,0008 L (T —F :
170,0007% JT) 2 ¥ % &
ERRERUNES BEE
94,702,000 w (= & — =
F/|) CHMEWFIE - M
HH2EIERSEEAGRF
(BMEZRSEECSEHER
KEFTERIR) ©

AEEEXEERIFREE
EZBRBWA - TE B
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2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Interest income B YA 666 1,012
Imputed interest income on deferred EERKAE Z(HEF B
consideration receivables (note 18) WA (B1:E18) 3,912 -
Others HAh 3 58
4,581 1,070
2013 2012
—Z—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
(Loss) gain on derivative financial fTHE2RmI Ay (FB)
instruments (note 25) Was (H1eE25) (28,342) 85,574
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 2 W
(note 28) (K1:#28) 66,452 24,215
Gain on disposal of held-for-trading HEFEEERE 2 WE
investments 69 =
Fair value changes on held-for-trading ¥ {EEZRE 2 AFE
investments &) 16,496 (17,993)
Write back of other payables (note) WO E A FE S I8 (M7 5E) 5,458 -
Loss on initial recognition of HRERABREER 2
convertible notes (note 25) B8 (Aat25) - (7,871)
Loss on early redemption of REPBEOABRKREER
convertible notes (note 25) B8 (it25) - (3,162)
60,133 80,763
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Note: According to the deed of settlement entered into
among the Company and its creditors, the payment
made by the Group in prior year in relation to
certain debts owed by a subsidiary to the creditors
should be the full and final settlement of all claims
and demands and the creditors shall release and
discharge the Group from any and all liability

howsoever arising thereunder. As such, the Group

idated Financial Statements

BRI - AEE A F 5 — R B
REERzETEHREEAX
NZHRBTRBERERENZE
B R ARSI FROR - (B AR
BRMBRASEBERILES 2 ER
LFTERE - Bt AEBRAK
F JE TR R e B R A R B A

wrote back the debts remain due and owing to the HERS ©
creditors during the current year.
2013 2012
—E—= —EF——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Interest on other borrowings HiEER S — 279
Effective interest expense on ERAFRNEHEEZ
convertible notes wholly repayable AR EE 2 ER
within five years MEER 15,936 18,694
15,936 18,973

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made
as the Company and its subsidiaries incorporated
in Hong Kong have no assessable profits for both
years.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax made
as the subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC have no
assessable profits for both years.

R R R R EREE MRS M
BRI MEFESERRT SN -
B EAE BN SRR -

PR AR B R A AL 2 P B 22 B W
EFEEHEERTOSA - B EFL
REILERMAEHEE -
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AREEHRARGS B MEABEE R
SR AR ADE MR T

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:
2013 2012
—E-=fF —Z——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Profit before taxation B 75 A A 20,279 28,242

REA SR E25%

(ZE—ZF :25%)

BE (HiE) 5,070 7,060
TAMBRAE 2 B2

Tax at the domestic income tax rate
of 25% (2012: 25%) (note)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible

for tax purpose 18,206 7,381
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBBRAZ BB E

for tax purpose (19,185) (27,700)
Tax effect of tax losses utilised EHRAHBEENTHBTE (4,134) =
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REBRATEBB L RGETE 43 13,259

Taxation for the year FREHIE

Note: The domestic income tax rate of 25% (2012: 25%)
represents the PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of
which the Group’s operations are substantially
based.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had unused tax losses of HK$100,512,000 (2012:
HK$140,006,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$176,000 (2012: HK$2,760,000) that will expire
up to 2018 (2012: 2017). Other losses can be
carried forward indefinitely. During the year ended
31 December 2013, tax losses of HK$23,136,000
(2012: HK$35,150,000) were disposed upon disposal
of subsidiaries (see note 28).

Miat - BIRFT S BB R25% (ZF— =
F:25%) RAKERHS BE
ERZHBERRARHBE -

RBERLERE  ZEBBEAAH
JE E548100,512,0008 &t (T —
140,006,000/ JT) AJ K 85 & 2K
Al o R ARBETERIAR I EFRE
I Bt LR IE BB RRELE R IEE
E o RERTIEEEB1E176,0004
TZEB(ZE— 4 : 2,760,000
W) ZEBER =SB NE(=F
—ZF: T —+F) NEH - HME
BHAERREE - HE-ZT—=
S N s B S R e T —
B AR (RME28) BREEHREE
823,136,000 T (=T — = F :
35,150,000/ 7T) °
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2013 2012
—E—=F T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Profit for the year has been arrived REE N 2R T
at after charging: BI8 -
Directors’ and managing directors’ EENEFHELEM
remuneration (note a) (Htita)
— Fees — e 2,818 3,506
— Salaries and other benefits — Fe LHMmEF 1,350 1,770
— Bonus — JEAL 2,520 2,343
— Other emoluments — E b & B 75 98
6,763 7,717
Employees’ salaries and BE#HE RBHRX
benefits expenses 4,494 3,901
Retirement benefits scheme BRESZIMEE 2 BRIREF
contributions for staff other sHEIER (H1aEb)
than directors (note b) 120 143
Total staff costs BT ABEE 11,377 11,761
Amortisation of prepaid SCENEIEROP /O %is
lease payments - 197
Auditor’s remuneration 1ZEEM B & 900 1,000
Depreciation of property, plant M BEREETE
and equipment 761 025
Written-off of property, plant W - BB &R
and equipment 41 0w
Minimum lease payments under BRAEEMZE 2 KEEHE
operating leases in respect of ER S
rented premises 2,123 1,625
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Notes: Biat -
(a) Director's and managing director’s emoluments (a) EENESALBIC2FMERES
and highest paid employees FES
(i) The emoluments paid or payable to each (i) ENSENSEERES
of the directors and the managing director MEARTR 2 FEaN T
were as follows:
Directors
g2
Kwan Wah
Ip Yeung Kam Chen Wu Wang Ma Leung Lee
Cheng Kwok Chiu Hung,  Guang Zhou  Catherine Kei, Yin Hoi Yu Ming
Kuong Yu Kong ~ Jimmy Lin Tong Chen®  Jackie Fan Ying Pan Tung Total
£IX  #EW BE  BEM  REN 0 REM  RERY  ERRY  EAF 24K TE 29E i
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
ThBr TR TRn  TER  TRn  TER  TEn  TER  TRn  TEr  fRn  TEr  TEn
For the year ended H2Z3-SET2R
31 December 2013 ST-BLEER
Fees ik 600 - 600 - 650 138 350 - 180 100 100 100 2818
Salaries and other benefits ~ F& REEH - 260 600 - - - 490 - - - - - 1350
Bonus T - 100 100 100 - - 2,120 100 - - - - 2,520
Share-based payments POSGpAY] - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Retirement benefits scheme R fiETIzt 23!
contributions - 1 30 - 15 - 18 - - - - - 15
600 mn 1,330 100 665 138 2978 100 180 100 100 100 6,763
Directors
Kwan Wah
Ip Kam  Chen Wu Wang Ma  Leung Lee Yeung
Cheng  Yeung  Chiu  Hung, Guang  Zhou Catherine Kei, Yin Hoi Yo Ming Zhang  Ting fei
Kuong KwokYu ~ Kong  Jimmy lin  Tong”  Chen Jackie fan  Ying Pan  Tung? X San®  Philip¥  Total
£t REM  BE BR% RER REW REF ¥1B RES RME TR ZEAY RO AR R &
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000 HKS'000
Thn Thrn Thr TEn TRn TEn  TRn [ TRn FEro Thn o Thn TAr T | Thn| Thn| TEn
For the year ended HEZR-ZF12R
31 December 2012 ST-ALER
Fees He 600 = 600 - 470 n 650 - 180 100 100 - 256 319 160 | 3,506
Salaries and other benefits £ RE R - 260 600 - - - 90 - - - - - - = =L LTI
Bonus Tt - 100 100 100 - 1 143 100 - = - = 21:800 = HI 12,343
Share-based payments Lxﬁx f1 2518 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Retirement benefits scheme | RIKIEFIE 2t
contributions = 12 8 = 14 4 8 - - - - - 5 1 408
600 37050308 100 484 ML= 100 180 100 100 2,061 326 o4 7117
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Notes: (Continued)

(a)

Director’s and managing director’s emoluments

and highest paid employees (Continued)

(i) The emoluments paid or payable to each
of the directors and the managing director
were as follows: (Continued)

Notes:

(1) The director was appointed in May
2012.

(2) The director was appointed in
December 2012.

(3) The director was resigned in May

2012.

(4) The director was resigned in April
2012.

(5)  The director was removed in July
2012.

(6) The director was resigned with effect
from August 2013.

(7) The director was resigned in
September 2013.

The bonus paid to Mr. Zhang Xi during the
year ended 31 December 2012 and Ms.
Catherine Chen during the year ended 31
December 2013 are determined on a one off
basis approved by the board of directors.

Ms. Catherine Chen is also the Managing
Director of the Company (before her
resignation in August 2013) and her
emoluments disclosed above include those
for services rendered by her as the Managing
Director.

idated Financial Statements
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Notes: (Continued) Hiet -
(a) Director’s and managing director’s emoluments (a)
and highest paid employees (Continued)

(ii) Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group, three (2012:
three) were directors and the managing
director of the Company whose emoluments
are included in the disclosures above. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2012:

(%)

EENESHAKCECFHRES

&8 (&)

(i) HEAEBAMNZSHMH
At = (=ZF—=
F:=0) ERAARAE
ENBEHEKE EHMHN
EREXHE - B
ZE—ZF M) AL

two) individuals are as follows: ZHMEEBOT
2013 2012
—E—= T
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET FET
Salaries, bonus and other benefits e A NEAET] 1,854 1,552

Retirement benefit scheme RIRAEF T B 5K

contributions 15 28
1,869 1,580

Included in the above is one (2012: one)
individual of which the emolument falls
within HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
band, while the remaining one (2012: one)
individual does not exceed HK$1,000,000.

(b) Retirement benefits schemes (b)
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of
trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution is
matched by employees but subject to a maximum
amount of HK$1,250 (for January and up to May
2012: HK$1,000) per month from June 2012
onwards for each employee.

In addition, pursuant to government regulations,
for the Group's employees in the PRC, relevant
subsidiaries are required to contribute amounts
ranging from approximately 14% to 30% of the
basic staff wages to certain retirement benefit
schemes. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits schemes is to
make the specified contribution.

W ABE—f(=
T — —F: —fu) ¥
7 F1,000,001% 7T =
1,500,000/% JT 2 fE &89 A
T+ EHEH—(ZT—=
Fo—fu) AT Z2HMI
ZRiBiE 1,000,000/ 7T °

B AE R 8
AEBESMEEEAEREER
VT REEEE - B CEER
AEBEZEENHRE  YHF
AABEZESHE - AKEM
ZAt L 2 A A B £ K
R25% - SR8 2 HFHRF - 1
BERER_Z—ZFRAES
A&E B EE1,2508 7T (=
E——F—AEZEHH{ 1,000/
y o1 I

tEoh - BIBBATEG - shAEE
ZERNEEMSE EREKEAQA
AR & T RKE R & 81 H&
oERBENFERNE THMAD
14%%30% > NEBE B BERINE
Rt zE—STAERIE TR

£
A °
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BE-F =F+-A=1HULTE

ARRBREESRER B ERF
(B1E) DERUTEHGFE :

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings
(loss) per share attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Earnings (loss): ar (E8) -
Earnings for the purpose of HEUGTESRERZF
basic earnings per share v 24,416 32,659
Effect of dilutive potential TRRBEEETE
ordinary shares:
— Interest on convertible notes — AR S = 18,694
— Net loss (gain) on derivative —{TASmIAY
financial instruments FEE (=) - (77,703)
— Loss on early redemption of — IR ER AR R
convertible notes B BB = 3,162
Earnings (loss) for the purpose of #EUGTESREEHE
diluted loss per share 2B (E8) 24,416 (23,188)
Number of shares: BRHEA -
2013 2012
—_ET—= St e
Weighted average number of ordinary #& AT E &R EANEF
shares for purposes of calculation of  (E518) 2 Z @A
basic earnings (loss) per share DA 15 8 1,906,073,250 1,711,688,004
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary AJHARY 5 2 E AR
shares in respect of convertible notes Ef#E 5 & - 90,163,934
Weighted average number of FBUAGTESREEEE .
ordinary shares for the purpose of T BRI TR
calculation of diluted loss per share 1,906,073,250 1,801,851,938
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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The computation of diluted earnings per share for
the year ended 31 December 2013 does not assume
the conversion of the Company’s outstanding
convertible notes since their exercise would result in
an increase in earnings per share.

No dividend has been paid or declared by the
Company in respect of the year ended 31 December
2013.

The board of directors has resolved not to declare
dividend by the Company on the profits attributable
to the shareholders recorded for the year ended 31
December 2013.

HRTTEAR T HITH A BERRE
HERFRANIBN  MAEEES
T—=Ft_A=1T—HIFEZE
P g B AR Y B RR AR R E 1T
Z AR R B

ARARUERBEZ T —=F+_H
=t —BLEFERNHEIREMMEK

B o

7N

EEECRBTHBREGHE-F
—=ZF T A=t HLEFEESZ

EMEIRAR
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For z‘he year ended 31 December 2013

AR E—=F - H=1T—HIFE
Furniture
Leasehold and Motor
improvement fittings vehicles Total
HEMELE KAREE AE act
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET FTAET TAT TAT
CosT A&
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—H—H 3,227 968 2,702 6,897
Currency realignment BHEE5| 1 - 1 2
Additions BE - 223 = 223
Disposal HE - (35) > (35)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F
+=-A=+—-H 3,228 1,156 2,703 7,087
Currency realignment B & 82 24 82 188
Additions ®eE - 333 172 505
Written-off HsH - (104) = (104)
Disposal HE (2,672) (1,024) (2,726) (6,422)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=%F
+-RA=+—H 638 385 231 1,254
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2012 n=—E——4%—F—H 987 502 1,290 2,779
Currency realignment gBE7| 1 - - !
Provided for the year AEERE 312 282 431 1,025
Elimination on disposal R & B8 - (35) - (35)
At 31 December 2012 NZE——%F
+= A =i 1,300 749 1,721 3,770
Currency realignment ==l 22 13 53 88
Provided for the year AEERE 214 207 340 761
Eliminated on written-off B B 4 5 r (63) - (63)
Eliminated on disposal R &R (898) (542) (1,929) (3,369)
REE—Z=F
At 31 December 2013 i = 638 364 185 1,187
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2013 O i
St - 21 46 67
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——%F
+Z-—A=+—H 1,928 407 982 3317
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The above items of property, plant and equipment
are depreciated on a straight line basis, after taking
into account of the residual value, and the rates per
annum are as follows:

idated Financial Statements

itz - BB REEE B L AEF
HREERREREINE  FIASEMN
o

Rate per
annum
FR
(%)

Furniture and fittings HKEEKE

Motor vehicles BB

10 to 33
10£33
20

Leasehold improvement are depreciated over the
remaining unexpired terms of the leases or five
years, whichever is shorter.

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s prepaid lease
payments comprise land under medium term lease
in the PRC and are amortised over the term of the
leases. The prepaid lease payments was disposed
during the current year upon disposal of subsidiaries
as detailed in note 28(a).

HEMERENG N AEmEN%E
F (AREERE) AFE -

RZZB——F+-_A=+—8 &%
B BAEYFIEBRERT R 2 H
MHBE Tz - WHRBLOFHRS
e MNBEARBERAEFELE
Bt A R B (58 20 Bff 7328(a)5F
i) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
A FE—=Ff A=+ —HIFFE

HK$'000
FH&T
Fair value ~NEE
Acquired from acquisition of a subsidiary B UkEEHT B A TS (F7:227)

(note 27) 88,916
Additions HE 870
Currency realignment =g =27 /85
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%F+-_H=+—H 90,571

All of the Group’'s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties
as at 31 December 2013 has been arrived at on
the basis a valuation carried out by Asset Appraisal
Limited, independent valuers not connected with
the Group. The fair value was arrived at using direct
comparison method where comparison is based
on prices realised or market prices of comparable
properties. The valuer has used comparable
properties of similar size, character and location and
are analysed and weighted against all the respective
advantages and disadvantages of each property and
arrived at fair comparison of capital value.

AEERBLEHNF[ENRDRES
SEEARNIBER N ZEMEERT
RAQFEENGAE - XDBRAK
SR B

REBZREMER _T—=F+=
A=T—RZRAVFENEHEREE
I 4 B8 2 S (B R & R E R ]
BRARETZEECERER - 1
FEDEAERLBORZER - MR
TIRBRI B LB R 2 BB BT
BFtE - [MEMZEAN) - Bk
WEHBENAELBRYE - BRIBY
XA B MR ET DN KE
- WERERNEZAFLER -
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The following table gives information about how
the fair values of these investment properties are
determined (in particular, the valuation techniques
and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.

Carrying value of

idated Financial Statements

TREJZSFRENEAFENEE
T (LERGEIDERFEREA
BB UMREBEAFESH  ERA
FEAEZ2ENABREES R —E
=& e

investment Relationship of
properties Valuation technique(s) and unobservable inputs to
HK$'000 Fair value significant unobservable inputs fair value
BREVEZEEE hierarchy HEREREART FaERG AHBEAY
TR DFERE LS DN ¢ ENER
Commercial Level 3 Direct comparison method — based on price per square metre, ~ The higher the price, the
properties in using market prices of comparable properties ranging from higher the fair value.
the PRC F=M RMB12,000 to RMB27,000 per square metre. Comparable

properties of similar size, character and location are analysed ~ Bi&#E @ AFELD
HK$90,571 and weighed against all the respective advantages and

disadvantages of each property in arriving at a fair comparison
REIRE Y% of capital value.
90,5718 7T BRIEE - BRESY I AERLERAELBNELTES

FAANTARE12,000LEARE27,0007T  FA/ ~ HHE
R EENA LR EETON  THEENENEEE

RREETEE  NEBEAEZATLR

The Group’s investment properties are held under
medium-term lease and are situated in the PRC. At
31 December 2013, the relevant building ownership
certificates of the investment properties have not yet
been obtained.

REBZREYEZTBHHELYFEER
URAAE RN —_T—=F+-A=+
— B MADRESREDERBERMN
EHEE -
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For z‘he year ended 31 December 2013
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2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHT
Deferred consideration receivable HE B A B FEUUE LT
for disposal of subsidiaries (note a) RIE (Kiza) 290,717 —
Consideration receivable for disposal @EFFEHERBMITE
of food processing and distribution DIHFEBRELE
operation in prior years (note b) (K1itb) 9,214 13,354
Other receivables H A fE U RIR 175 656
300,106 14,010
Analysed for reporting purposes as: REEENMEN DT
Current assets MENE E 205,404 14,010
Non-current assets FEMENEE 94,702 -
300,106 14,010
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F—=F+-A=+—AULFE

Notes:

(a) The deferred consideration receivable represents the
remaining payment from the disposal of the Group’s
property development project during the year (see
note 28(b)). Pursuant to the Allywing Disposal
Agreement (as defined in note 28(b)), the second,
third and fourth installments of HK$101,561,000
each, shall be repayable on or before the date
falling 9, 12 and 18 months from the date of
completion of the disposal (3 September 2013),
respectively, therefore, the carrying amount of the
deferred consideration receivable (being the present
value of each of the deferred installments) from
the second and third installments are classified
as current assets and the fourth installment is
classified as non-current assets, and is analysis as
follows:

Kzt -

BREERREREEAFEHELRS
BEMERBIERE 2B THIR (R
Bf3E28(b)) © R IR & F I & 1 &
(E&EAME280) F= =K
PO A5 HAfE 101,561,000 75
ARHNEERTKBH (ZE—=
FHRA=H) BsFFNMAA - +
—@AAR+N\EAKZAIEE "

WE_R=—ZBHI>BAIRZEE
BRE (B HEE S B R

ZHE) ZEAEIEARDE
B RENBOSHARSEAIE
MEEE  HTAT -

At

31.12.2013

i

—E-=F
+=A=+-H
HK$'000
T

Current assets MENEE
Non-current assets IEMBEE

196,015
94,702

290771

The amount is unsecured and non-interest bearing.
During the year ended 31 December 2013, imputed
interest income arising from the unwinding of
imputed interest on amortisation of fair value
adjustment of deferred consideration receivables
amounts to HK$3,912,000 is recognised in profit or
loss and included in other income.

ZRBAEEE - BTEE - R
e e o = I | )
IEFE - AR B HELTEK
REZ AT EFEMEERTF
B2 mEF BN A3,912,000/8 7T
RIBRARER - Wak AH U o

/
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Notes: (Continued)

(b) The consideration receivable represents the
remaining final payment from the disposal
of Prowealth Holdings Group Limited and its
subsidiaries in 2010, which operates the Group's
food processing and distribution operation. The
amount carried interest at 6% per annum (see note
4 for details).

Included in the other receivables are the following
amounts denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entities to which they

idated Financial Statements

Kzt - (&)

b) EURRKEERZ-ZZ-—ZTFH
EProwealth Holdings Group
Limited X EL Kt B A &) (K& A&
BvRMMIRDHER) 2%
TEERNR o ZRIBIRF N E6E
FHE (BRI RMWE4) -

HtEEREBETIAEEEEER
ZHNREB NI ERBE 228

relate:
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
Hong Kong Dollars BT 9,389 13,848

Properties under development represents the Group’s
property development project situated in Xian City,
the PRC and are held for sales after completion.
The properties under development at the end of the
reporting period includes development costs incurred
for construction and land costs of land use rights
for terms expiring in year 2048. The development
project was disposed during the current year as
detailed in note 28(b).

BRPYERASEUNPEALS
KB RERIEFHEL ENYEFER
B - RBEREREERTYERR
BETREEZHERNARER -F
PO\ 6 JE i 2 £ 3 A4 2 £ 3Rk
Ko ABEBEARAFELE (FIHH
RKIEE28(b)) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Held-for-trading investments represent equity
securities listed in Hong Kong.

Fair values are determined with reference to quoted
market bid prices.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-
term bank deposits with original maturity of three
months or less, and carry interest ranging from
0.01% to 0.4% (2012: 0.01% to 0.4%) per annum.

At 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,
the Group had bank balances and cash that were
in RMB, which is not freely convertible into other
currencies or were subject to exchange controls in
the PRC amounting to approximately HK$5,421,000
and HK$4,009,000, respectively.

Included in the bank balances and cash are the
following amounts denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the group entities to
which they relate:

BITEHRLBESBIERS MR A
ERHAPR=EA 2 EHRITER -
FEFEANF0.01%E04% (ZF—
TF :0.01%%F0.4%) °

R-B—=Ff+-A=+—HEKZ=E
——Ft+ZA=1T—8  XEERA
RESEZRIT/EBRBAESIRING
5,421,000/ 7T 54,009,000/ 7T * &
] B f AR AK E A Sk A R B S
FE & I P A R o

i

p=i|

TRSIESBERE TN EREE
Bz EEINEEFEZS

o md

2013 2012

—ET—= ===

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FHEIT

Hong Kong Dollars BT 31,595 29,004
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2013 2012
—E—=F —E—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Accrued expenses e 4,090 2,341
Amount due to former director of ANEIEPNGEIEE e
a subsidiary - 5,512
Accrued costs for construction work — FEEFEE TR - 25,121
Other payables H A FE < 508 69 9,862
4,159 42,836
Included in other payables are the following HEmEMNZESE T UEEERE
amounts denominated in currencies other than the B2 EEAINEE B 25
functional currency of the group entities to which
they relate:
2013 2012
—F—= —E——4F
HK$°000 HK$000
THET FET
Hong Kong Dollars BT 45 7,805
The amounts due to non-controlling shareholders FERT BB & A) FE 15 IR IR 3R s IE 4K
of subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and fully BB NRAREERELES -

settled in the current year.
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During the year ended 31 December 2012, the

Group obtained a loan of amount RMB14,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$17,191,000) from
Xi‘an Xingchuang Estate Limited ("FAZERIE%A
FR/A®A]") (“Xi'an Xingchaung”) and its shareholder,
being independent third parties not connected to the
Group. The proceeds from the borrowings is used
for general operation for the Group’s development
project. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. Subsequently in 2013, Xi'an
Xingchuang acquired 40% equity interest from the
non-controlling shareholder of Xi‘an Yuansheng
Enterprise Limited (“Xi‘an Yuansheng”), a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and
the Group has repaid the entire amount to Xi‘an
Xingchuang.

(i) Fulbond Convertible Note

On 6 August 2009, the Company entered
into a placing agreement (the “Fulbond CN
Placing Agreement”) with a placing agent
whereby the Company agreed, subject to
conditions (including the Stock Exchange’s
and shareholders’ approval) issue zero coupon
convertible notes in a maximum aggregate
principal amount of HK$800,000,000 (the
“Fulbond Convertible Notes”) which can
be converted into ordinary shares of the
Company at a conversion price of HK$0.01
per share. The placing shall proceed in
two tranches namely, the First Tranche
Fulbond Convertible Notes and the Second
Tranche Fulbond Convertible Notes. Both
the First Tranche Fulbond Convertible Notes
(up to the aggregate principal amount
of HK$450,000,000) and the Second
Tranche Fulbond Convertible Notes (up
to the aggregate principal amount of
HK$350,000,000) fall under the placing and
are subject to the same terms and conditions
under the Fulbond CN Placing Agreement.

idated Financial Statements
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RZZFEZENFENANRB AR
AIHEAERIEF Y —BEE W
E((EARATBRREREEH
#FD Bt ARFIREFE
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TERBREE ([BAATH
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TR EEM AR NE LR
o REEEEE D MBLENE —
HEATRERERRE _E
HARR EIRETT - B
RamRER (FeBBERS
450,000,000 7T) & & —#t
BHIUBLBRER (KX BE&
%350,000,0007% 7T) 9 A& B
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AR E IR AL E Hh ek 2 MR
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()

Fulbond Convertible Note (Continued)

The Fulbond Convertible Notes are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars with a
conversion period of 36 months from the
first issue date and can be converted into
ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.01
per share, and may be adjusted upon
occurrence of adjustment events, which
include consolidation or sub-division of shares,
capitalisation of profits or reserves, capital
distributions in cash or specie, rights issues or
grant of options or warrants to subscribe for
new shares at a price which is less than 60%
of the market price, issue for cash of securities
which are convertible into or exchangeable
for or carry rights of subscription for new
shares or modification of rights of conversion
or exchange or subscription attached to
such securities such that the total effective
consideration per share initially receivable for
such securities is less than 80% of the market
price, issue shares for cash at a price per share
which is less than 80% of the market price,
issue shares for the acquisition of assets at a
total effective consideration per share which is
less than 80% of the market price, and will in
any event not be adjusted below the par value
of the share.
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Fulbond Convertible Note (Continued)

The Fulbond Convertible Notes contain
three components, the liability component,
conversion option and issuer’s early
redemption option. The conversion option
gives the holder’s right at any time to convert
the Fulbond Convertible Notes into ordinary
shares of the Company. However since the
conversion option will be settled other than
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number
of the Company’s own equity instruments,
the conversion option is accounted for as
a derivative liability. The early redemption
option gives the issuer the right to redeem
the note at par at any time before maturity.
Both conversion option derivative and early
redemption option are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss.

The fair value of the liability component upon
the issuance of the note was calculated at
the present value of the principal amount.
The Fulbond Convertible Notes can only be
redeemed at par at the discretion of the
issuer in whole or in part anytime before the
maturity date. All tranches of the Fulbond
Convertible Notes matured on 28 December
2012 at aggregate principal amount of
HK$800,000,000.
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Fulbond Convertible Note (Continued)

On 21 June 2011, the Company obtained
approval from its shareholders to the proposed
reorganisation of the share capital of the
Company (the “Capital Re-organisation”),
which involves share consolidation every
10 existing shares of par value US$0.001
(equivalent to HK$0.01) into one consolidated
share of par value US$0.01 (equivalent to
HK$0.10) and capital reduction of the par
value of each issued consolidated share from
US$0.01 (equivalent to HK$0.10) to US$0.001
(equivalent to HK$0.01) by cancellation of
US$0.009 (equivalent to HK$0.09) of the paid
up capital of each issued consolidated share.
The original conversion price was adjusted
from HK$0.01 per share to HK$0.10 per share
as a result of Capital Re-organisation.

First Tranche Fulbond Convertible Notes

On 29 December 2009, the Company
partially issued the First Tranche Fulbond
Convertible Notes with the principal amount
of HK$200,000,000 (the “1st HK$200M
Fulbond CN”) to an independent third party.
The effective interest rate of the liability
component and discount rate used is 15.24%
which represents the cost of debt applicable
to the Company at the issue date.

idated Financial Statements
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Fulbond Convertible Note (Continued)

First Tranche Fulbond Convertible Notes
(Continued)

On 14 January 2010, the Company issued the
remaining portion of the First Tranche Fulbond
Convertible Notes with principal amount
of HK$250,000,000 (the “2nd HK$250M
Fulbond CN”) to an independent third party.
The effective interest rate of the liability
component and discount rate used is 12.66%
which represents the cost of debt applicable
to the Company at the issue date.

On 12 January 2010 and 11 August 2010,
certain holders of the 1st HK$200M Fulbond
CN, gave notice to the Company to convert
the 1st HK$200M Fulbond CN in aggregate
principal amount of HK$140,000,000 to
ordinary shares of the Company.

On 5 May 2010, 18 May 2010 and 11
August 2010, certain holders of the 2nd
HK$250M Fulbond CN gave notice to the
Company to convert the 2nd HK$250M
Fulbond CN in aggregate principal amount
of HK$130,000,000 to ordinary shares of the
Company.
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Fulbond Convertible Note (Continued)

First Tranche Fulbond Convertible Notes
(Continued)

On 2 April 2012, holders of the First Tranche
Convertible Notes, have given notice to the
Company to convert remaining portion of 1st
HK$200M Fulbond CN and 2nd HK$250M
Fulbond CN in aggregate principal amount
of HK$60,000,000 and HK$120,000,000 to
ordinary shares of the Company respectively.
The carrying value of the liability component
and fair value of the embedded conversion
option and early redemption option of 1st
HK$200M Fulbond CN and 2nd HK$250M
Fulbond CN at the date of conversion
were approximately HK$88,482,000 and
HK$169,432,000 respectively, and gain on
fair value changes of HK$6,804,000 and
HK$13,608,000 were recognised in profit or
loss respectively.

idated Financial Statements

()

BHURRREE (&)
FE—MEABTRREER (&)

RZE——FWMA=-H' %
—HATRBREEFEARE
AEBERBN ERASR
% 9 5l £60,000,000/% 7T &
120,000,000/ 7t < % — #t
200,000,000/ JT & F 7] #2 f%
ZF % & % — #250,000,000
BILEBURBREREABRE
BARNREERK - RNE®RA
By - 2% — #£200,000,000/%
TRABITHRERE KRS it
250,000,000/ JT f& F 7] #2 f%
ERAEMBO ZEEBENAEA
E A AR BARE K IR FRE O] B
2 ~F1ED R4 488,482,000
7 7T %.169,432,0005& 7T ©
B = R W5 B #E 526,804,000
77T % 13,608,000/ 7T A F{E
BE) 2 W o



Notes to the Conso

AR MR I R

For the yea

BE—F—

r ended 31 December 2013
=FEf A=+ —HILFEE

Fulbond Convertible Note (Continued)

First Tranche Fulbond Convertible Notes
(Continued)

The fair values of the embedded conversion
option and the issuer’s early redemption
option were determined using binomial option
pricing model, the valuation was performed
by independent valuer, Asset Appraisal
Limited, and the inputs into the model at each
respective date were as follows:
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(Date of

conversion)

(R BH)
2.4.2012 31.12.2011
—E-F —F—%F
mMA=ZR +=-A=+—H
Conversion price ERE HK$0.10 HK$0.10
0.10/& T 0.10/ 7T
Share price IR E HK$0.142 HK$0.143
0.1425& T 0.1437T
Expected volatility TR AR 1R 53.36% 50.27%
Remaining life Feh e 2R 0.74 year 0.99 year
0.74% 0.994F
Risk-free rate 2 J3 B 1) =X 0.130% 0.250%

Second Tranche Fulbond Convertible Notes

On 10 August 2010, the Company issued the
first portion of the Second Tranche Fulbond
Convertible Notes with principal amount
of HK$250,000,000 (the “3rd HK$250M
Fulbond CN") to an independent third party.
The effective interest rate of the liability
component and the discount rate used is
10.61% which represents the cost of debt
applicable to the Company at the issue date.
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Fulbond Convertible Note (Continued)
Second Tranche Fulbond Convertible Notes
(Continued)

On 11 August 2010, certain holders of the
3rd HK$250M Fulbond CN, have given notice
to the Company to convert certain the 3rd
HK$250M Fulbond CN in aggregate principal
amount of HK$34,000,000 to ordinary shares
of the Company.

On 2 April 2012, certain holders of the 3rd
HK$250M Fulbond CN have given notice to
the Company to convert certain of the 3rd
HK$250M Fulbond CN in aggregate principal
amount of HK$126,000,000 to ordinary
shares of the Company. The carrying value
of the liability component and fair value of
the embedded conversion option and early
redemption option at the date of conversion
is approximately HK$177,342,000, and gain
on fair value changes of HK$14,288,000 was
recognised in profit or loss.

On 5 December 2012, the Company
exercise its call option to early redeem the
remaining portion of the 3rd HK$250M
Fulbond CN in aggregate principal amount
of HK$90,000,000. During the period up
to the date of redemption, a fair value gain
on embedded conversion option and early
redemption option of HK$56,468,000 was
recognised in profit and loss. The carrying
value of the liability component and fair value
of the conversion option derivative and early
redemption option of the remaining portion
of the 3rd HK$250M Fulbond CN in aggregate
at the date of redemption is approximately
HK$86,838,000, giving rise to a loss on early
redemption of HK$3,162,000 recognised in
profit or loss in the current period.
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Fulbond Convertible Note (Continued) (i) WHUARRREE (&)

Second Tranche Fulbond Convertible Notes FE I AR ()
(Continued)

The remaining unissued tranche of Fulbond # 1100,000,000/% 7T 2 K #&
Convertible Notes of HK$100,000,000 expired THRBEAABRBKRERE N
in October 2010. T—TFTHEH-

The fair values of the embedded conversion NER AR REITAZRE
option and the issuer’s early redemption FHELOHE s A FEDBHEA
option were determined using binomial option —HEAHEEERAEE B
pricing model, respectively, the valuation was BhERE L GEMNEENE
performed by independent valuer, Assets BERBRAR®ET REBEAR
Appraisal Limited and the inputs into the Hgg AR 2 BBAT -

model at each respective date were as follows:

(Date of (Date of

redemption)  conversion)

(BEBH) (BREH)
5.12.2012 2.4.2012 31.12.2011
—¥-=F Z®F-=F FF
+=-REA MA=H t-HA=T—H

Conversion price HhE HK$0.100 HK$0.100 HK$0.100
0.100% 7T 0.100% 7T 0.100% 7T

Share price RE HK$0.124 HK$0.142 HK$0.143
0.124 7 0.1428 7 0.143%7

Expected volatility KR 29.54% 53.36% 50.27%
Remaining life e - 0.74 year 0.99 year
- 0.74%F 0.99%

Risk-free rate [ o | 2% 0.047% 0.130% 0.250%
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2012 CN Convertible Note

On 16 August 2012, the Company entered
into a placing agreement (as supplement and
amended by a side letter dated 27 August
2012) (the "2012 CN Placing Agreement”)
with a placing agent whereby the Company
agreed, subject to conditions (including the
Stock Exchange's and shareholders’ approval)
issue zero coupon convertible notes in a
maximum aggregate principal amount of
HK$120,000,000 (the “2012 CN Convertible
Notes”). The placing can be completed by
a maximum of four tranches provided that
the aggregate principal amount of the 2012
CN Convertible Notes to be issued by the
Company for each partial completion shall not
be less than HK$30,000,000. The tranches fall
under placing are subject to the same terms
and conditions under the 2012 CN Placing
Agreement.

The 2012 CN Convertible Notes are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars with a
conversion period of 36 months from the
first issue date and can be converted into
ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.12
per ordinary share, and may be adjusted
upon occurrence of adjustment events, which
include consolidation or sub-division of shares,
capitalisation of profits or reserves, capital
distributions, issue for cash of securities which
are convertible into or exchangeable for or
carry rights of subscription for new shares
or modification of rights of conversion or
exchange or subscription attached to such
securities that the total effective consideration
per share which is less than 80% of the
market price, issues shares for cash at a price
per share which is less than 80% of the
market price, issues shares for the acquisition
of assets at a total effective consideration per
share which is less than 80% of the market
price, and will in any event not be adjusted
below the par value of the share.
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2012 CN Convertible Note (Continued)

The 2012 CN Convertible Notes contain
three components, the liability component,
conversion option and issuer’s early
redemption option. The conversion option
gives the holder’s right at any time to convert
the 2012 CN Convertible Notes into ordinary
shares of the Company. However since the
2012 CN Convertible Notes are denominated
in HK$ and the functional currency of the
Company is RMB, the conversion option will
be settled other than by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments, the conversion option
is accounted for as a derivative liability. The
early redemption option gives the issuer the
right to redeem the note at par at any time
before maturity. Both conversion option
derivative and early redemption option are
measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised profit and loss.

The fair value of the liability component upon
the issuance of the note was calculated at
the present value of the principal amount.
The 2012 CN Convertible Notes can only
be redeemed at par at the discretion of the
issuer in whole or in part anytime before the
maturity date.

All tranches of the 2012 CN Convertible Notes
will mature on 28 November 2015.

idated Financial Statements
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2012 CN Convertible Note (Continued)

The 2012 CN Convertible Notes with principal
amount of HK$120,000,000 was issued on 29
November 2012 which can be converted into
ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.12
per share. The aggregate fair value of the
2012 CN Convertible Notes at 29 November
2012 is approximately HK$127,871,000,
representing a loss in fair value on initial
recognition of HK$7,871,000 recognised in
the profit and loss. The effective interest rate
of 23.52% was used to determine the fair
value of the liability component on initial
recognition.

The aggregate principal amount under the
2012 CN Convertible Notes outstanding at 31
December 2013 amount to HK$120,000,000
and the carrying amount of the liability
components and the fair values of the
embedded conversion option and early
redemption option in aggregate approximately
HK$77,138,000 (2012: HK$61,202,000) and
HK$101,834,000 (2012: HK$73,492,000),
respectively. During the year ended 31
December 2013, an aggregate fair value loss
on embedded conversion option and early
redemption option of HK$28,342,000 (2012:
HK$5,594,000) in respect of the outstanding
2012 CN Convertible Notes was recognised in
the profit and loss.
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2012 CN Convertible Note (Continued) (i) 2012WBBRE (&)

The fair values of the embedded conversion
option and the issuer’s early redemption
option were determined using binomial option
pricing model, the valuation was performed
by independent valuer, Asset Appraisal

NERRREERETAZER
PERME AP ERHA A
AR EERANETE - BHMA
18 i 83 & (B AD & 2 R (B A ]
BRAFET REBBAE

Limited, and the inputs into the model at each NZEIBEAT -
respective date were as follow:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
—=E—= —E——F
+=A=+—H +Z—A=+—~H
Conversion price B (E HK$0.120 HK$0.120
0.1208 T 0.1207 7T
Share price A& HK$0.178 HK$0.134
0.178/& T 0.134% 7T
Expected volatility TEHA K I8 47.09% 48.91%
Remaining life FERF B 1.92 years 2.92 years
1.92F 2,924
Risk-free rate 42 [ i | =R 0.32% 0.120%
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(ii)
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2012 CN Convertible Note (Continued) (i) 2012WTERRERE (&)
The movements of the components of First RREFERN F—#EREZ
and Second Tranche Fulbond Convertible BRI RRER 2 Hp 1 &
Notes during both years are set out below: T
Principal Liability ~ Embedded
amount  component derivatives Total
Ve BfEHH RENEIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT TR THT
At 1 January 2012 NZE——F
—H—H 396,000 347,336 248,461 595,797
Change in fair value AFEEE - - (91,168) (91,168)
Interest charged MEFX - 17,465 - 17,465
Converted during the year FRER (306,000) (277,963) (157,293) (435,256)
Redeemed during the year FREMR (90,000) (86,838) - (86,838)
At 31 December 2012 and RZB—_%
31 December 2013 +ZA=+—Hk
—Z-=%
+-A=1+—H - - - -
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(ii) 2012 CN Convertible Note (Continued) (i) 2012/ REHE (&)
The movements of the components of 2012 FER20120] 2 E EE 7 &=
CN Convertible Notes during the year are set D EFFINT
out below:
Principal Liability Embedded
amount  component derivatives Total
PN B NEMEIA @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT

At 1 January 2012 RZT—ZF

_H _E _ — — —
Issued during the year FRET 120,000 59,973 67,898 127,871
Change in fair value AFEZE - - 5,594 5,594
Interest charged MEBFX - 1,229 - 1,229
At 31 December 2012 W_T——4%F

+-HA=+—H 120,000 61,202 73,492 134,694
Change in fair value ANFEZE - - 28,342 28,342
Interest charged MEFX - 15,936 - 15,936
At 31 December 2013 R_T—=%F

TZA=1—H 120,000 77,138 101,834 178,972
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Number of shares Amount in US$ As presented
ki &E 7B (%7 &35
213 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
ZE-cF “3-°F CZB-Zf “T--f CB-ZF %%

USS'000  USS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
tin TR FER TEn

Ordinary share of USS0.001 each  BREE0.001%7T

Authorised: T
At 1 January 2012, N-E-—%
31 December 2012 and —-A-A
31 December 2013 2
e
R-EF-=

TZA=+—H  100,000,000,000 100,000,000,000 100,000 100,000 775,000 715,000

Issues and fully paid: BETRAR -
At beginning of the year REA 1,906,073,250  4,564,293,000 1,906 4,564 14,895 35,465
Issue of shares upon conversion of — ER A ARZER
convertible notes Bkl - 3,060,000,000 = 3,060 - 23,758
Adjustment on Capital RREH 7 7%
Re-organisation (notes a and b) (Witakh) - (5,718,219,750) - (5,718) - (44,328)

At end of the year RER 1,906,073,250  1,906,073,250 1,906 1,906 14,895 14,895
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Notes:

(a)

Pursuant to special resolution passed by the
shareholders in the special general meeting
on 21 June 2011, the Company approved the
following capital re-organisation: (i) Consolidated
of every 10 existing shares of US$0.001 each in
the issued share capital of the Company into one
consolidated share of par value US$0.01 (“Share
Consolidation”); (ii) Upon the share consolidated
become effective, the par value of each issued
consolidated share is reduced from US$0.01
to US$0.001 by cancellation of US$0.009 of
the paid-up capital of each issued consolidated
share (“Capital Reduction”); and (iii) Upon Share
Consolidation and the Capital Reduction becoming
effective, the entire amount of the share premium
account is cancelled. The capital re-organisation
was in effect from 22 June 2011.

Pursuant to special resolution passed by the
shareholders in the special general meeting on
11 October 2012, the Company approved the
following capital re-organisation: (i) Consolidation
of every 4 existing shares of US$0.001 each in
the issued share capital of the Company into one
consolidated share of par value US$0.004 (“Share
Consolidation”); (ii) Upon the Share Consolidation
becoming effective, the par value of each issued
consolidated share is reduced from US$0.004
to US$0.001 by cancellation of US$0.003 of
the paid-up capital of each issued consolidated
share (“Capital Reduction”); and (iii) Upon Share
Consolidation and the Capital Reduction becoming
effective, the entire amount of the share premium
account is cancelled. The capital re-organisation
was in effect from 12 October 2012.
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On 9 May 2013, Prance Fortune Investments Limited
("Prance Fortune”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a conditional agreement
with Win Harbour Investments Limited (“Win
Harbour”), an independent third party to the Group
(the “Acquisition Agreement”), pursuant to which,
Prance Fortune has conditionally agreed to purchase
or procure to purchase the entire equity interest
in B SKIEEZABR2AEF (Guiyang Ding Tian
Investment Consultancy Limited) (the “Guiyang
Ding Tian") at the aggregate of (i) the consideration
of RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,270,000) for the entire equity interest in
Guiyang Ding Tian under the Acquisition Agreement
and (ii) the consideration of RMB68,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$86,326,000) to be
paid under the Pre-sale Agreement (as more fully
explained below) (the “Acquisition”).

On 1 April 2013, Guiyang Ding Tian and &z
EMEHEMEZEGR AR (Guiyang Zhong Yu Real
Estate Development Company Limited) (“GY Zhong
Yu”), a company established in the PRC, which is
principally involved in properties investment and
management, and indirectly wholly owned by Win
Harbour, which is principally engaged in investment
holding entered into a pre-sales agreement (the
“Pre-sale Agreement”), for the purchase of the
whole commercial building A27 of & e & —
¥, (First City, Guiyang) Plot A (the “Property”)
being constructed and developed on a piece of
land located in Guanshanhu District, Guiyang
City, Guizhou Province by Guiyang Ding Tian for
a consideration of RMB68,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$86,326,000). Pursuant to the Pre-
sale Agreement, Guiyang Ding Tian has made full
payment of the consideration to GY Zhong Yu on 2
September 2013 and the acquisition under the Pre-
sale Agreement was completed on the same date.
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BEWBRAERIEERR AR ([E
In)) BAKE 2B E =G BR
BERERAR ([IE] ;T —DEIK
Mz ((WEmEl - Bt Bin
EERHREBENRTEEEERRE
AEBEFBERAT (EBSEX])
ZEERKE - & RABNREKE RS
AR B A R #1,000,0007T (&R
#91,270,0008T) BEEBR R X2

2HBRERGNVBEES HE (FRT

) B AR EARKE8,000,0007T
(#8 % 7 4986,326,0005% 7T) ([ Uk B4
FIH]) -
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Details of the Acquisition can be referred to a
circular issued by the Company dated 27 June 2013.
The Acquisition was completed on 3 September
2013. At the date of completion of the Acquisition,
Guiyang Ding Tian principally holds the Property and
has no other business or operations, therefore, the
Acquisition had been accounted for as acquisition of
assets. The Group intends to hold the Property for
rental/capital appreciation purposes and therefore,
has classified the Property as investment properties.

idated Financial Statements

WHEEEZFBEIL2HARBRE
—ZFERA-TEBBBZREEK W
BEEER -_ZT—=FNLA=H=
B RIREBEEEA B - BEFSX
FTEFEYE  RUEBHMERRE
& At - WIESEEARIIEKEE
E- AfERLENES BEXREE
BB EZYE  REBMELIEA
WEME -

HK$'000
FH&T
Net identifiable assets of FT Uk BB B A B 2 AT 3% A
the subsidiary acquired: BEFE:
Investment properties KEME 88,916
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIA® 1,271
Other payables H A0 FE T 5RIB (2,591)
87,596
Consideration transferred, satisfied by cash EEZERE  URESIM 87,596
Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash FRAKENBEARRE X
equivalents in respect of acquisition of ReFEBEEREFESN :
a subsidiary:
Cash consideration paid ENEERE 87,596
Bank balances and cash acquired Fr BRI IR & (1,271)
86,325

The acquiree contributed nil turnover and loss of
HK$20,000 to the Group for the period between the
date of acquisition to 31 December 2013.

RWEBEERHZ2 " ZT—=%+_"A
=F+—H wkEFTERNEAEEE
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Disposal of Max Plan Investments
Limited (“Max Plan”) and its subsidiary
(collectively referred to as “Max Plan
Group”)

On 26 March 2013, Fair Power Capital
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an agreement with
an independent third party to dispose
all of its entire interests in Max Plan and
assignment of shareholders’ loan at total cash
consideration of US$850,000 (approximately
HK$6,630,000). The Max Plan Group is
previously principally engaged in processing
and distribution of frozen seafood products
and became inactive since 2010. The disposal
was approved by the board of directors of the
Company and completed on the same date.

The gain from disposal of the Max Plan Group
is analysed as follows:

idated Financial Statements

HEZBREARL2F (R
B REMBAR (EH[A
E&HE )

(a)

R-ZE—=FE=H_+,H"
RIEERBRAGT (KRAZE
BEMIBAR) BBLE=7F]
N HEEREE®
EHERRERRRER - £
15 & X {8 A850,0003 jt (4
6,630,000 7t) - & B &
LRI EBNRELRGEERMN
TRA#E RR-_ZE—ZF#
EEEK o AL EEHEDE
AAREESHAETKRE AT
ﬁ‘Z o

KEHERBEE 2 W o
LI

1.1.2013 to

26.3.2013
===
—A—H=ZE
== _=F
=5 =758
HK$'000
FATT

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

HEMB A2 WS 4,874
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Disposal of Max Plan Investments () HEZBEREBEEFERLAT (R
Limited (“Max Plan”) and its subsidiary Bl REREBLAT (ABIE
(collectively referred to as “"Max Plan BEE ) (2)
Group”) (Continued) . .
7= [ A HA 7 7
Analysis of assets and liabilities of the Max tj’iﬁ/\\'ﬂ - RMZAER
Plan Group at the date of disposal were as BEIAE
follows:
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment M - WE MRS 1,708
Prepaid lease payments AR AL FIE 5,278
Other debtors and prepayments b pE U SR IB e TR A IR 5,861
Bank balances and cash RITER KRS 61
Other payables H M FE N RRIB (5,471)
Amount due to former director FER AIEE ERIB (5,681)
Amount due to immediate holding company B B A R F08 (6,335)
Net liabilities disposed of FILEaEFE (4,579)
HK$'000
TET
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: & B A B 2 s
Cash consideration received Bl eRE 6,630
Net liabilities disposed of I EaEFE 4,579
Assignment of amount due to BREMNERERARNIEA
immediate holding company (6,335)
Gain on disposal HE s 4,874
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMEEZRERAFE
Cash consideration received 2WELAE 6,630
Less: Cash and cash equivalent disposed of B HEZRERASEEERE (61)
6,569

During the period from 1 January 2013 to
26 March 2013, the Max Plan Group had no
contribution to the Group's cash flows.

e e s =
—=FZH="F~B{HE " &=
BEBEUAEE RS REY
EEFER o
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Disposal of Allywing Investments
Limited (“Allywing”) and its subsidiary
(collectively referred as the “Allywing
Group”)

On 9 May 2013, Good Base Investments
Limited (“Good Base”),
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement
with Billion Sino Investments Limited (“Billion
Sino"”), being an independent third party to
the Group, to dispose of its entire interests in
Allywing (the “Allywing Disposal Agreement”)
and the assignment of shareholder’s loan
(amounted to HK$71,471,000 as at date of
disposal) in Allywing owing to Good Base
at an aggregated cash consideration of
HK$406,162,000. Xi‘an Yuansheng is 60%
owned subsidiary of Allywing which holds the

a wholly-owned

Group’'s property development project. The
disposal was subsequently approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 17 July 2013
and completed on 3 September 2013. Details
of the disposal of Allywing can be referred to
the circular issued by the Company dated 27
June 2013.

idated Financial Statements
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(b)

Disposal of Allywing Investments (b)
Limited (“Allywing”) and its subsidiary
(collectively referred as the "Allywing

Group") (Continued)

The gain from disposal of Allywing Group is

analysed as follows:

HERAREARLT ([&
BN REWBLAR (EWIH
BEH ] (&)

5 B B 2 I
o -

1.1.2013 to
3.9.2013
—ET-=F
—H—BZ%
—F—=
NA=HR
HK$'000
FHET
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERNB ARz K 61,578
Analysis of assets and liabilities of the Allywing EHSERNEERRZEER
Group at the date of disposal were as follows: BESNHT :
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment e L] 1,345
Properties under development BREPYE 652,014
Other debtors and prepayments H b e U 30 T8 K FB N F0E 3,931
Bank balances and cash IRITARR KRR 5,204
Other payables H fth fE AT K38 (62,509)
Amount due to non-controlling AN EINGE R & e
shareholders of subsidiaries (B 127)
Amount due to immediate holding company J& /{5 B 5 i& A 5] 7018 (71,471)
Net assets disposed of P E B EFE 471,387
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(b) Disposal of Allywing Investments
Limited (“Allywing”) and its subsidiary

idated Financial Statements

(b) HERBREARLFT (&
BN REWBLAR (EWIH

(collectively referred as the “Allywing RER]) (&)
Group”) (Continued)
HK$'000
FAT
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEWNB AR 2 W
Cash consideration received EWRERE 101,478
Deferred consideration receivable (note) EEEWRRE (H3Z) 286,805
Net assets disposed of I EEESE (471,387)
Assignment of amount due to EREENEEERARIFE
immediate holding company (71,471)
Non-controlling interests RS 216,153
Gain on disposal HE WS 61,578
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMEAZEERATE
Cash consideration received BEURERE 101,478
Less: Cash and cash equivalent disposed of W EZRe MReEEEE (5,204)

96,274
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Disposal of Allywing Investments
Limited (“Allywing”) and its subsidiary
(collectively referred as the "Allywing
Group") (Continued)

Note: Pursuant to the Allywing Disposal
Agreement, the total consideration would
be settled in four installments of which the
first installment has been received in the
current year. The second, third and fourth
installments shall be paid on or before the
date falling 9, 12 and 18 months from the
date of completion of the disposal. These
installments with deferred payment terms
are recognised at amortised cost with
discount rate, determined by the directors
of the Company, for calculating the present
value of each installments, by reference to
the borrowing rate of the purchaser’s group,
which is based on RMB base lending rate
from the People’s Bank of China (“PBoC")
of 6.6% with respect to amount due to
be received within one year and RMB base
lending rate from PBoC of 7.1% with
respect to amount due to be received in 18
months pursuant to the Allywing Disposal
Agreement. A fair value adjustment of
approximately HK$17,879,000 is recognised
at the completion date.

During the period from 1 January 2013 to
3 September 2013, the Allywing Group
contributed cash outflow of HK$11,225,000
to the Group’s net operating cash flows, cash
outflow of HK$468,000 in respect of investing
activities and cash inflow of HK$12,828,000
in respect of financing activities.

idated Financial Statements
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Disposal of TGT Holdings Corporation
(“TGT"”) and other subsidiaries (the “2012
Disposal”)

On 31 January 2012, the Group entered into
an agreement with Barstow Holdings Limited
("Barstow"),
British Virgin Islands, to dispose all of its
entire interests in Ta Fu Strategic Investment
Limited, TGT and its subsidiaries, Fulbond
Business Services Limited and Fulbond Digital
Systems Limited (collectively known as the
“TGT Group”).

a company incorporated in the

Barstow is an independent third party of
the Group. The 2012 Disposal was approved
by the board of directors of the Company
and completed on 31 January 2012. Total
consideration for the 2012 Disposal was
HK$35 in cash.

The profit from disposal of subsidiaries is
analysed as follows:

idated Financial Statements

() HETGT Holdings Corporation
(ITGT)) REMHEB AT =
Z—_FHESEHE])
RZTE——F—HA=+—H"
A % B £Barstow Holdings
Limited ([Barstow] © — X R
EBEXBESEMKZZA
A) Sl Hha#E MBEEER
Ta Fu Strategic Investment
Limited, TGTK & it B 1 7
Fulbond Business Services
Limited X Fulbond Digital
Systems Limited (£ & [TGT
Group]) Z & EPkEz -
Barstow B AEE 2 B F =
Feo ZE-—_HFHEREEAR
AAESEHETR_T—=
F—HA=F+—HEK - —_F—
“FHEFBE2RELBRE

©35%87T °

KA HEHBAR GO
LIl

1.1.2012 to
31.1.2012
= — Lk
B =
e
—A=+—H
HK$'000
FET

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

HENB AR 2 Wt 24,215
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(c) Disposal of TGT Holdings Corporation

("TGT"”) and other subsidiaries (the 2012
Disposal”) (Continued)

Analysis of assets and liabilities of the TGT
Group at the date of disposal was as follows:

idated Financial Statements

() HETGT Holdings Corporation
(ITGT)) REMHEB AT =
E-"FHESHE]) (&)

TGTREEREERHZEER

BEIHMT

31.1.2012

—E—F

—A=+—H

HK$'000

FH&T

Other debtors and prepayments H A pE U RIE R TE A 5R0E 735

Other payables Hfh fE < RKIB (18,221)

Amounts due to the Company FERT AR RIFRIE (605,832)

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FERT R B8 A R FIR (8,856)

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders F&{ T 2 RIFEEEAR AR K18

of subsidiaries (7,490)

(639,664)

Less: Non-controlling interests W IEIERR R 761

Net liabilities disposed of FILEa/EFE (638,903)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMBAA W :

Consideration received EWKE T

Net liabilities disposed of T EaE#E 638,903
Assignment to Barstow of amounts due ABarstow$E =% fE {f

to the Company AR BIFIE (605,832)
Assignment to Barstow of amounts due A Barstow$E =% f& {~f

to the Company’s subsidiaries PAN/NGH NS B (8,856)

Gain on disposal k=G 24,215

During the period from 1 January 2012 to S3mar s ) =g ke

31 January 2012, the TGT Group had no
contribution to the Group's cash flows.

—B=+—HHEHE TGTERHAE
BErReREVETMEH -

L E
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A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
by the Company on 25 May 2012. Pursuant to the
Scheme, the Board of Directors (“Board”) may,
at their discretion, grant options to any directors,
executives, employees and any other persons who
have contributed or will contribute to the Group
to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price
determined by the directors and not less than the
highest of:

(i) The closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant of the options;

(i) The average closing price of the shares of
the Company as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the options; and

(i)  The nominal value of the shares of the
Company on the date of grant.

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company's shareholders. The
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders.

idated Financial Statements
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Options granted must be taken up within 28 days
of that date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 in
aggregate as consideration for the options granted.
Vesting periods are determined by the Board on
each grant date. Options are lapsed if the employee
leaves the Group before the option vest.

No option was granted under the Scheme during the
years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December
2013.

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
outstanding commitment of future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of office premises which fall due as follows:

RApEREBRESNEHKIBTLZ
RER  DREBREANZZ LB
H28E MM - HREHHEFTERN
ERLBERETE - WiESNERER
ERIBEFRASE - BARERE R -

RBE-F-——#+-A=+—AK
—F=FT-A=THIEFE"
A IR I 5 B R B AR

AEBEEREEA
RIREHRERE  AEERPRE
E2 TR B ERAORTHBEZ
RERZEBESHAENT -

2013 2012

—E—= —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx TAT

Within one year —F R 1,470 1,102
In the second to fifth year inclusive BE_FEEFERF

(EEMFERRFBEN) 766 -

2,236 =02

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain of its office premises.
Leases are negotiated for lease term of 1 to 2 years.

REHENREARERESETHA
EMERZRANES - KiEmR - HE
HR1E2%F -
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2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FH&T
Capital expenditure in respect of REEIEES S
properties under development B iy P RE 2
contracted for but not provided in R 2B R EYE
the consolidated financial statements - 289,212
The key management personnel are the directors of ITEEEABRARRIES -ENT
the Company. The details of their remunerations are WF 2 HMAFBRRNMEE2 -
set out in note 12.
Other than the transactions and balances with BR B 512 B2 3P 45 B8 £ B8 28 A T #9
related parties disclosed in notes 12 and 23, the RGN NEEREEALBE
Group has no other significant transactions and HiBEBAR 5 R AR ©

balances with related parties.
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BN R RN RS SR 2 B

Information about the statement of financial

position of the Company at the end of the reporting

period includes:

MR ZERIT

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current asset EMENEE
Investment in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIEE = =
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables and prepayments H b pE U 018 K
AT IR 389 630
Bank balances and cash RITER LIRS 182 1,967
571 2,597
Current liability mEBE
Other payables H Ath & (< IR 1,520 7,095
Net current liabilities mEaEFHE (949) (4,498)
Non-current liability JEMEBAE
Convertible notes Al R 178,972 134,694
Net liabilities BEFE (179,921) (139,192)
Capital and reserve EAR K FiE
Share capital (see note 26) IR (A HfaE26) 14,895 14,895
Reserves G (194,816) (154,087)
(179,921) (139,192)
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Exchange
Share  translation  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
K& E [ 5 LRER CH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET FET
At 1 January 2012 W_E-—%-A-A - (9469  (628901)  (638,370)
Exchange difference arising on RTERERAR
translation of functional currency 2IEREEE
to presentation currency ZEHER - 362 - 362
Profit for the year KERF G - - 28,095 28,095
Total comprehensive income AEERE
for the year Nt - 362 28,095 28,457
Issue of shares upon conversion BIRTIRR R
of convertible notes REEATRR D 411,498 - - 11,498
Reduction of share capital ARAEAT
upon capital reorganisation NN (411,498) - 455,826 44,328
At 31 December 2012 RZE—_4%F
+-A=+—~H - (9,107) (144,980 (154,087)
Exchange difference arising on RrEDRERR
translation of functional currency 2y EBEEL
to presentation currency ZENESR - 918 - 918
Loss for the year KEEEE - - (41,647) (41,647)
Total comprehensive expense KEELRE
for the year R - 918 (41,647) (40,729)
At 31 December 2013 NS
R - (8,189) (186,627) (194,816)
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Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 are as

follows: MEBARZFBRT :

Place of

incorporation/ Percentage of issued Issued and fully

establishment/ Place of share capital/registered paid capital/
Name of subsidiary registration operation capital held registered capital  Principal activities

AT/ FreRahx/ BRAR
) R R/ b EENY AMEAADL BRkE/ SMER  TEER

2013 2012
ZB-ZE “F-C
% %
Able Force Investments Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 100 HK$T  Investment in securities
HREEBRAT 3 B BT BARE
Allywing Investments Limited® British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong - 100 US$T  Investment holding
RAREBRAT! RBRARS B T REER
Fulbond Corporate Management Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 100 Ordinary HK$10,000  Provision of management
Limited 5 Bk LERI0,000BT  senvices
RACEERARAT R R R
Fulbond Investments Limited British Virgin Islands  Hong Kong 100 100 USST Investment holding
BARERRAT ABRAEE B 1% RERK
Guiyang Ding Tian Investment PRC PRC 100 = RMB1,000,000  Property investment
Consultancy Limiteq® EP L ARE1,000000T  #EEE
ERSARERARRAT
Xi'an Yuansheng Enterprises Limited** PRC PRC - 60 RMB50,000,000  Property development
BREBERERAA" P il ARE50,000000  MERER
i The Company is a sino-foreign equity joint venture. A ZABRABR/PINEEMRE -
# Disposed during the year ended 31 December # e s e e =
2013. BIEFEEEE -
##  Acquired during the year ended 31 December e E e s
2013. HIEFEUE -
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B —FE—=—F+_HA=F+—HIFE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results of the year or constituted a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary that
has material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group that has material non-
controlling interests:

idated Financial Statements

EEAR LRAINARRIHEAR
TBREAFERE  WEKARHE
BEFEEARNY - EZRR - 7Ht
HAuff B A RFHITE s HRIEENIT
£ o

BB E A KRB 2 EHEA
A2 B
TRBIIEE EAI RS 2 A
B3E 2 AHE A 72 R

Place of Proportion of ownership
establishment interests and voting
Name of and principal rights held by non- Loss allocated to non- Accumulated non-
subsidiary place of business controlling interests controlling interests controlling interests
RIK FERERBENAARR
WEARER  IEERHR REFE LA PEFHERERZER ZitFERER
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F “E-—F —E-=F —EF-—F —E-=E —EC
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
TER TR TER THEL
Xi‘an Yuansheng  PRC - 40% 4,137 4,417 - 218,601
Enterprises i (note)
Limited i3]
BREBER
BRAA

Note: Xi'an Yuansheng was
year (see note 28(b)).

disposed during the current

Bt AR RBIRAFEELE (B
£128(b)) °
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T+ A= —HULFE

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary BREERFERERZFZENEL
that has material non-controlling interests Az FHE (&)

(Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the BBEERFERER 2AEENHEAR
Group’s subsidiary that has material non-controlling Al B G E R E ST o T3
interests is set out below. The summarised financial MM BERIEETEEYIENNE
information below represents amounts before o

intragroup eliminations.

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Xi‘an Yuansheng AREE
Current assets MENEE - 615,944
Non-current assets EMENEE - 1,490
Current liabilities mEaE — (70,933)
Equity attributable to owners of RATIRREE S
the Company - 327,900
Non-controlling interests FEVERR B 2 = 218,601
Expenses and loss for the year RFEERZNEE (10,343) (11,042)
Loss for the year attributable to: I TATRIEARFEEERE
— owners of the Company — AREIRE (6,206) (6,625)
— non-controlling interests — FEIERR R (4,137) (4,417)

Loss for the year REEZEE (10,343) (11,042)
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Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary

BEEAFERESZHZENBL

that has material non-controlling interests B2 FHE (&)
(Continued)
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T
Other comprehensive income (expense) A N ATRIGARFE
for the year attributable to: Hiv2mEmkas () :
— owners of the Company — RNAFIRE 2,534 (8)
- non-controlling interests — FEIERRAE R 1,689 (7)
4,223 (15)
Total comprehensive expense for IATATEEREE
the year attributable to: 2HERZ B
— owners of the Company — RNARIRE (3,672) (6,633)
— non-controlling interests — FEIERR RS (2,448) (4,424)
(6,120) (11,057)
Net cash outflow from operating KREEBR ML FE
activities (11,253) (34,440)
Net cash outflow from investing REEBHR ML T
activities (468) (169)
Net cash inflow from BEEBIRERAFE
financing activities 12,910 38,537
Net cash inflow BEMAFH 1,189 3,928




Financial Summary

YAZ +AI R
E]f F% TE}L z=
For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t-HLEE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
“E-=§ %% - <—Z-TF _TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz FET TET AT THT
Turnover EEL ] 250 250 125 119,552 415,873
Profit (loss) before taxation BREAER (B5R) 20,279 28,242 30,656 (785,047) (426,211)
Taxation I8 - = = = 6,874
Profit (loss) for the year REERH (BR) 20,279 28,242 30,656 (785,047) (419,337)

Attributable to: FE(G R
Owners of the Company KARRE 24,416 32,659 60,886 (783,381) (417,547)
Non-controlling interests RS (4,137) 4,417) (30,230) (1,666) (1,790)
20,279 28,242 30,656 (785,047) (419,337)

At 31 December
R+=R=t+-8

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
“g-=¢ T E—F —T-TF C"TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET TET THT THET
Total assets BEE 470,135 698,348 692,655 920,533 622,252
Total liabilities HaE (183,131) (220,877) (685,986) (968,964)  (1,084,041)
Net assets (liabilities) BEFE (8F) 287,004 477,471 6,669 (48,431) (461,789)

Attributable to: IR
Owners of the Company AREIRE 287,004 258,870 (208,684) (270,227) (465,539)
Non-controlling interests FRRER - 218,601 215,353 221,796 3,750
287,004 477,471 6,669 (48,431) (461,789)




	Cover

	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Executive
	Corporate Governance Report
	Directors’ Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Financial Summary

